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2020
1,380,177,669.38 97.22
39,410,038.42 2.78
1,419,587,707.80
( 104,042 ) 100.00
2020
1,053,871,119.98 85.93
69,008,233.33 5.63
21,109,522.47 1.72
20,370,950.00 1.66
13,731,878.10 1.12
8,133,819.20 0.66
80,227,116.30 6.54
47,329,319.24 3.86
12,909, 768.40 1.05
141,379,914.64 11.53
41,070,910.94 3.35
1,226,382,723.32
( 89,882 ) 100.00
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2020

Goldman Sachs Institutional
Funds, plc - Goldman Sachs

1 - 8,437,841.10 157.51 1,329,007,731.71 163.57 1,380,177,669.38 97.22

Australia Enhanced Income Fund
2020

AUST & NZ BANKING GR FRN

1 AUAUD 26/07/29 AUD 2029/7/26 .8841 | 65,500,000.00 .00 | 65,704,123.81 | 1.02 | 66,690,554.20 5.44
NATIONAL AUSTRALIA BANK

2 LTD FRN 06/29/2049 2049/6/29 .1444 | 68,842,100.00 .83 157,102,762.70 | 0.95 | 65,660,389.68 5.35
CHALLENGER LIFE CO LTD

3 FRN 11/24/2042 2042/11/24 .9843 | 52,710,000.00 .01 | 53,183,400.63 | 1.01 | 53,393,179.58 4.35
SUNCORP GROUP LTD FRN

4 12/05/2028 2028/12/5 .0494 | 44,910,000.00 .01 | 45,435,059.68 | 1.02 | 45,893,636.78 3.74
COMMONWEALTH BANK AU FRN

5 AUAUD 31/12/49 AUD 2049/12/31 .6950 | 43,693,400.00 .97 | 42,444,711.85 | 1.01 | 44,018,984.61 3.59
CROWN RESORTS LTD FRN

6 04/23/2075 2075/4/23 .8950 | 40,228,800.00 .97 1 39,118,904.52 | 1.01 | 40,775,750.88 3.32
MACQUARIE FINANCE LTD FRN

7 01/29/2049 2049/1/29 .5900 | 37,530,600.00 .79 129,722,678.80 | 1.00 | 37,410,262.40 3.05
BENDIGO & ADELAIDE BANK

8 LTD FRN 11/30/2028 2028/11/30 .3350 | 35,580,000.00 .01 | 35,998,011.02 | 1.03 | 36,718,780.60 2.99
WESTPAC BANKING CORP FRN

9 06/22/2028 2028/6/22 .7221 | 35,100,000.00 .00 | 35,178,656.15 | 1.01 | 35,442,842.76 2.89

10 | NEXTDC LTD FRN 06/09/2022 2022/6/9 .6411 | 31,755,000.00 .00 | 31,829,191.50 | 1.01 | 32,008,690.70 2.61
INSURANCE AUSTRALIA

11 GROUP LTD FRN 06/15/2044 2044/6/15 .9950 | 30,290,000.00 .01 | 30,514,892.56 | 1.02 | 30,864,143.92 2.52
WESTPAC BANKING CORP FRN

12 AUAUD 27/08/29 AUD 2029/8/27 .8686 | 29,900,000.00 .00 | 30,018,476.88 | 1.02 | 30,401,772.83 2.48

13 | AMP LTD FRN 11/15/2028 2028/11/15 .6444 | 29,120,000.00 .00 | 29,135,209.13 | 1.00 | 29,243,282.43 2.38
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DAVID JONES FINANCE FRN

AUAUD 28/11/25 AUD 2025/11/28 | 4.6371 | 28,500,000.00 | 1.00 | 28,535,798.25 | 1.01 | 28,863,833.85 2.35

AMP LTD FRN 12/01/2027 2027/12/1 2.6850 | 26,760,000.00 | 0.98 | 26,115,049.74 | 0.98 | 26,229,663.09 2.14

INSURANCE AUSTRALIA FRN

AUAUD 15/06/45 AUD 2045/6/15 3.2450 | 23,240,000.00 | 1.01 | 23,534,311.50 | 1.03 | 23,947,200.17 1.95

DOWNER GROUP FINANCE
3.7000% AUAUD 29/04/26 2026/4/29 3.7000 | 22,000,000.00 | 1.03 |22,720,272.94 | 1.07 | 23,595,512.60 1.92
AUD

CREDIT AGRICOLE SA VAR

FRAUD 29/05/34 AUD 2034/5/29 4.2000 | 22,000,000.00 | 1.05 | 23,020,836.15 | 1.07 | 23,447,102.80 1.91

SOCIETE GENERALE 5.0000%

FRAUD 19/05/27 AUD 2027/5/19 5.0000 | 19,844,000.00 | 1.09 | 21,607,168.84 | 1.13 | 22,454,829.44 1.83

BANK OF QUEENSLAND LTD

FRN 05/01/2028 2028/5/1 2.7800 | 22,200,000.00 | 1.00 | 22,204,891.18 | 1.01 | 22,392,616.08 1.83

DBS GROUP HOLDINGS L FRN

SGAUD 16/03/28 AUD 2028/3/16 2.4750 | 21,040,000.00 | 1.00 | 21,069,203.99 | 1.00 | 21,109,522.47 1.72

0
INCITEC PIVOT LTD 4.3000% 2026/3/18 4.3000 | 18,780,000.00 | 1.06 | 19,972,140.52 | 1.10 | 20,637,529.80 1.68

AUAUD 18/03/26 AUD

gg;ggrz/ozuopzﬁ\dgre CHALD 2024/8/27 | 4.3750 | 20,000,000.00 | 1.00 [ 20,002,566.17 | 1.02 | 20,370,950.00 [ 1.66
AAI LTD FRN 10/06/2042 2042/10/6 | 4.1150 [ 19,170,000.00 | 1.04 [20,001,016.82 | 1.04 |20,016,669.89 [ 1.63
gg%&%TUNDAUAUD 2026/6/20 | 4.6141 | 18,000,000.00 | 1.00 [ 18,080,525.06 | 1.01 | 18,208,899.00 [ 1.48
,S:ggf,ngE;ggEgg'fU\D/AR 2168/3/12 | 4.8750 | 18,000,000.00 | 1.00 [ 18,000,000.00 | 1.01 | 18,164,862.00 [ 1.48
ﬁﬁ;ﬂ,gNﬁ"/gg%g/X‘U'DABFRN 2029/5/17 | 3.0517 [ 16,000,000.00 | 1.01 [ 16,089,687.21 | 1.02 |16,376,523.20 | 1.34

COMMONWEALTH BANK OF

AUSTRAL IA FRN 06/03/2026 2026/6/3 3.5360 | 15,900,000.00 | 1.02 | 16,206,007.65 | 1.02 | 16,250,981.37 1.33

VIRGIN AUSTRALIA

HOLDINGS LTD 8.25% 2023/5/30 8.2500 | 15,900,000.00 | 1.03 | 16,314,504.96 | 1.02 | 16,223,642.91 1.32
05/30/2023

(2020
Yarra A$ Cash Reserves Fund 47,329,319.24 1.00 47,329,319.24 1.00 47,329,319.24 3.86
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2019 2020

2013 76,379,830.57 8,329,984,322 9.13 996
2014 49,744,189.17 5,425,101,271 8.24 899
2015 59,912,168.14 6,534,021,057 5.98 652
2016 56,970,642.30 6,213,218,249 6.40 698
2017 30,990,659.53 3,379,841,328 6.59 719
2018 28,831,434.17 3,144,356,211 6.03 658
2019 48,446,307.21 5,283,554,264 5.48 598
2019 25,635,462.34 2,795,803,523 5.83 636
25,691,071.51 2,801,868,259 5.82 635

25,518,589.40 2,783,057,360 5.75 627

27,005,568.88 2,945,227,342 5.68 619

35,435,167.20 3,864,559,335 5.74 626

44,495,835.38 4,852,715,807 5.64 615

46,869,808.82 5,111,621,350 5.50 600

48,446,307.21 5,283,554,264 5.48 598

10 51,447,874.84 5,610,905,230 5.57 607

11 53,654,685.78 5,851,580,031 5.44 593

12 56,961,973.38 6,212,272,817 5.62 613

2020 56,703,897.20 6,184,127,029 5.38 587

2012 26

2018 28
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2013 89,503,879.46 6,559,739,326 10.13 742
2014 129,976,554.66 9,525,981,691 9.88 724
2015 164,865,354.37 12,082,981,822 9.10 667
2016 143,729,212.38 10,533,913,975 8.90 652
2017 117,232,957.90 8,592,003,484 9.00 660
2018 171,859,373.26 12,595,573,466 8.94 655
2019 568,908,701.96 41,695,318,767 8.78 643
2019 264,796,517.40 19,406,936, 760 8.82 646
281,730,956.60 20,648,061,809 8.83 647

294,072,233.68 21,552,554,006 8.80 645

337,670,637.63 24,747,881,032 8.83 647

421,467,268.45 30,889,336,105 8.83 647

492,890,928.39 36,123,976,142 8.84 648

530,566,377.74 38,885,209,825 8.82 646

568,908,701.96 41,695,318,767 8.78 643

10 599,496,271.97 43,937,081,773 8.75 641

11 623,683,546.57 45,709,767,128 8.72 639

12 650,299,505.21 47,660,450,737 8.71 638

2020 669,417,066.44 49,061,576,799 8.72 639
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2013 7,469,784,413 10,172
2014 8,184,213,894 10,011
2015 10,775,093,560 9,337
2016 5,360,559,728 9,138
2017 4,603,090,032 9,271
2018 4,252,511,012 9,244
2019 4,930,245,467 9,134
2019 4,689,613,493 9,126
4,691,077,579 9,140

4,927,577,824 9,116

4,996,864,036 9,150

4,881,075,437 9,155

4,892,056,303 9,179

4,911,734,261 9,165

4,930,245,467 9,134

10 4,756,604,454 9,113

11 4,715,367,993 9,093

12 4,411,404,897 9,085

2020 4,487,416,101 9,118
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2018 104,800,963.23 11,429,593, 050 10.16 1,108
2019 331,712,144.29 36,176,526,456 10.24 1,117
2019 136,878,364.37 14,927,954,418 10.12 1,104
141,174,364.74 15,396,476,219 10.15 1,107

138,024,105.40 15,052,908,935 10.13 1,105

178,269,802.50 19,442,104,661 10.19 1,111

237,507,383.52 25,902,555,247 10.22 1,115

279,268,387.88 30,457,010,382 10.26 1,119

307,101,740.62 33,492,515,832 10.26 1,119

331,712,144.29 36,176,526,456 10.24 1,117

10 344,376,032.35 37,557,650,088 10.23 1,116

11 369,722,507.60 40,321,936,679 10.22 1,115

12 392,469,167.29 42,802,687,385 10.23 1,116

2020 404,095,283.30 44,070,631,597 10.28 1,121
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2012 26 0.77 84
2013

2013 10 0.84 92
2014

2014 10 0.76 83
2015

2015 10 0.36 39
2016

2016 10 0.36 39
2017

2017 10 0.36 39
2018

2018 10 0.36 39
2019

2019 0.03 3

0.03 3

0.03 3

0.03 3

0.03 3

0.03 3

0.03 3

0.03 3

10 0.03 3

11 0.03 3

12 0.03 3

2020 0.03 3
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2012 26 0.77 56
2013

2013 10 0.84 62
2014

2014 10 0.84 62
2015

2015 10 0.54 40
2016

2016 10 0.48 35
2017

2017 10 0.48 35
2018

2018 10 0.48 52
2019

2019 0.04 3

0.04 3

0.04 3

0.04 3

0.04 3

0.04 3

0.04 3

0.04 3

10 0.04 3

11 0.04 3

12 0.04 3

2020 0.04 3
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2012 26 440
2013

2013 10 480
2014

2014 10 480
2015

2015 10 280
2016

2016 10 240
2017

2017 10 240
2018

2018 10 240
2019

2019 20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

10 20

11 20

12 20

2020 20
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2018 28 0.15 16
2018

2018 10 0.36
2019

w
©

2019 .03

.03

.03

.03

.03

.03

.03

.03

10 .03

11 .03

12 .03

O|0O|0O|O0O|O|O|O|O|O|O|O|O
WlWlWwlwWw|wlw|wlw|lw|w|lw]|w

2020 .03
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2012 26 1.00
2013
2013 10 0.55
2014
2014 10 18.20
2015
2015 10 13.04
2016
2016 10 8.59
2017
2017 10 3.03
2018
2018 10 3.15
2019
x 100
10.00 10.00
10,000

10.00
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2012 26 9.00
2013
2013 10 5.82
2014
2014 10 0.61
2015
2015 10 3.74
2016
2016 10 6.52
2017
2017 10 4.67
2018
2018 10 3.58
2019
2012 26 6.12
2013
2013 10 3.14
2014
2014 10 1.94
2015
2015 10 0.87
2016
2016 10 4.08
2017
2017 10 2.30
2018
2018 10 1.41
2019
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2018 28 3.10
2018
2018 10 4.33

2019
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2012 - 19,829,446.66 11,463,030.25 8,366,416.41
5013 (19,829, 446.66) (11,463,030.25) (8,366,416.41)
2013 10 1,596,945.46 3,928,264.03 6,035,007.84
0Lt (1,596,945.46) (3,928,264.03) (6,035,097.84)
2014 10 7,083,728.95 3,106,480.39 10,012, 346.40
5015 (7,083,728.95) (3,106,480.39) (10,012, 346.40)
2015 10 2,126,238.83 3,240,229.78 8,898, 355.45
010 (2,126,238.83) (3,240,229.78) (8,898,355.45)
2016 10 1,300,852.71 5,499,332.83 4,699,875.33
017 (1,300,852.71) (5,499,332.83) (4,699,875.33)
2017 10 1,608,479.14 1,524,040.01 4,784,314.46
5018 (1,608,479.14) (1,524,040.01) (4,784,314.46)
2018 10 5,286,066.20 1,223,293.90 8,847,086.76
5019 (5,286,066.20) (1,223,293.90) (8,847,086.76)
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19,714,285.92

10,878,127.71

8,836,158.21

§8i§ 26 (19,714,285.92) (10,878,127.71) (8,836,158.21)
2013 10 6,921,628.11 2,600,540.12 13,157,246.20
5014 (6,921,628.11) (2,600,540.12) (13,157,246.20)
2014 10 8,194,864.28 3,241,215.43 18,110,895.05
5015 (8,194,864.28) (3,241,215.43) (18,110,895.05)
2015 10 2,541,868.77 4,511,290.73 16,141,473.09
5016 (2,541,868.77) (4,511,290.73) (16,141,473.09)
2016 10 2,252,957.23 5,373,104.64 13,021,325.68
5017 (2,252,957.23) (5,373,104.64) (13,021,325.68)
2017 10 8,936,500.50 2,726,972.47 19,230,853.71
5018 (8,936,500.50) (2,726,972.47) (19,230,853.71)
2018 10 47,528,291.15 1,985,509.24 64,773,635.62
2019 (47,528,291.15) (1,985,509.24) (64,773,635.62)
2012 26 977,974.90 243,624.93 734,349.97
5013 (977,974.90) (243,624.93) (734,349.97)
2013 10 313,030.55 229,848.17 817,532.35
2014 (313,030.55) (229,848.17) (817,532.35)
2014 10 778,849.13 442,321.19 1,154,060.29
5015 (778,849.13) (442,321.19) (1,154,060.29)
2015 10 44,419.21 611,864 .54 586,614.96
2016 (44,419.21) (611,864.54) (586,614.96)
2016 10 120,877.06 210,985.11 496,506.91
5017 (120,877.06) (210,985.11) (496,506.91)
2017 10 91,999.35 128,484 .98 460,021.28
5018 (91,999.35) (128,484.98) (460,021.28)
2018 10 164,999.42 85,245.92 539,774.78

2019

(164,999.42)

(85,245.92)

(539,774.78)
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2018 28 10,328,962.52 14,660.21 10,314,302.31
2018 (10,328,962.52) (14,660.21) (10,314,302.31)
2018 10 25,885,390.67 3,802,649.64 32,397,043.34

2019 (25,885,390.67) (3,802,649.64) (32,397,043.34)
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AUST & MZ BANKING GR FRMN ALIALD 26/07/29 ALID 2.8841% S.44%
MNATIOMNAL ALISTRALLA BANK LTD FRM 06/29/ 2049 21444% =.35%
CHALLEMGER LIFE COLTD FRM 117242042 2.0843% 4.35%
SUNCORP GROUP LTD FRM 12/05/2028 3.0494% 374%
COMMONWEALTH BANEK ALI FRMN AUALUID 31/12/4% AUD 3.6950% 3.59%
CROWN RESORTS LTD FRN 04/ 2372075 4.8950% 3.32%
MACGHIARIE FINANCE LTD FRM 01/29/ 2049 2.5800% 3.05%
BEMNDIGO & ADELAIDE BANK LTD FRN 11/30/2028 3.3350% 299%
WESTPAC BAMKING CORP FRM D5/22/2028 L720% 2.89%
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131

23 103

2020 31 73.29
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2019 30
2019 30 2018 30
©) 1,179,655,412 86,456,945 402,979,239 29,534,348
() 7,601 564
©) 3,630,000 266,043 746,000 54,674
563,016 41,263
@) 27,639,599 2,025,706 13,717,996 1,005,392
@ 12 25,332,319 1,856,606 9,419,560 690,360
1,236,828,037 90,647,127 426,862,795 31,284,774
©) 1,689,723 123,840 392,016 28,731
©) 620,000 45,440 3,037,223 222,598
27,549,965 2,019,137 12,882,011 944,123
@) 565,740 41,463 618,124 45,302
@) 2,129,269 156,054 711,760 52,165
') 2,043,364 149,758 706,046 51,746
(b) 134,225 9,837 44,404 3,254
83,720 6,136 59,297 4,346
@) 77,723 5,696 26,779 1,963
57,333 4,202 53,191 3,898
) 27,449 2,012 18,632 1,366
(b) 18,932 1,388 5,033 369
©) 16,760 1,228 9,420 690
©) 14,356 1,052 27,097 1,986
849 62
35,029,408 2,567,305 18,591,033 1,362,537
1,201,798,629 88,079,822 408,271,762 29,922,237
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2019 30

2019 30 2018 30
() 105,879 7,760 49,861 3,654
27,824,465 2,039,255 10,519,372 770,965
31,191,596 2,286,032 4,118,653 301,856
10,370,321 760,041 7,170,440 525,522
(3,535,410) (259,110) 3,229,270 236,673
65,956,851 4,833,978 25,087,596 1,838,670
@) 5,449,646 399,405 2,060,614 151,022
0 5,447,197 399,225 2,060,614 151,022
() 345,455 25,318 133,253 9,766
©) 264,433 19,380 131,863 9,664
255,227 18,706 145,409 10,657
©) 205,063 15,029 77,273 5,663
16 118,679 8,698 64,445 4,723
©) 62,609 4,589 25,758 1,888
59,548 4,364 48,884 3,583
() 59,159 4,336 8,977 658
3,915 287 3,087 226
12,270,931 899,337 4,760,177 348,873
53,685,920 3,934,641 20,327,419 1,489,797
(h) 10 30,387,558 2,227,104 11,626,373 852,007
23,298,362 1,707,537 8,701,046 637,700
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2019 30
2019 30 2018 30
408,271,762 29,922,237 209,530,734 15,356,507
863,081,310 63,255,229 241,164,893 17,674,975
(92,852,805) (6,805,182)  (51,124,911) (3,746,945)
23,298,362 1,707,537 8,701,046 637,700
1,201,798,629 88,079,822 408,271,762 29,922,237
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2019 30

2019 30 2018 30
23,298,362 1,707,537 8,701,046 637,700
(2,198) (161) (13,587) (996)
(h) 10 30,387,558 2,227,104 11,626,373 852,097
(105,879) (7,760) (49,861) (3,654)
59,159 4,336 8,977 658
53,637,002 3,931,056 20,272,948 1,485,804
©) (2,884,000) (211,368) (746,000) (54,674)
(563,016) (41,263) 258,521 18,947
15 1
(776,676,173)  (56,922,597)  (195,275,302)  (14,311,727)
©) (2,417,223) (177,158) 3,037,223 222,598
14,667,954 1,075,014 11,579,011 848,626
@) 1,417,509 103,889 (200,595) (14,702)
() 1,337,318 98,012 260,243 19,073
(b) 89,821 6,583 17,388 1,274
@) 50,944 3,734 10,639 780
24,423 1,790 33,744 2,473
) 8,817 646 765 56
©) 7,340 538 832 61
4,142 304 (2,236) (164)

849 62

©) (12,741) (934) 3,833 281
1,297,707 95,109 (368,921) (27,038)
(710,009,327)  (52,036,584)  (161,117,892)  (11,808,330)
98,188 7,196 49,861 3,654
(45,260) (3,317) (3,944) (289)
(709,956,399)  (52,032,704)  (161,071,975)  (11,804,965)
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2019 30 2018 30

849,159,707 62,234,915 228,739,334 16,764,306

(92,905,189) (6,809,021)  (50,767,002) (3,720,714)

(30,387,558) (2,227,104)  (11,626,373) (852,097)
725,866,960 53,198,789 166,345,959 12,191,495
2,198 161 13,587 996
15,912,759 1,166,246 5,287,571 387,526
9,419,560 690, 360 4,131,989 302,833
25,332,319 1,856,606 9,419,560 690, 360
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2019 30

2011 2010 10

2012 26
2012 26
2012 26

2018 28
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2019 30 2018 30
100
307105
2019 30
917,590,920 176,869,631 2019 30
27,548,787
563,016 2018 30
245,922,510 71,183,782 2018 30

12,882,011
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(d
2019 30 2018 30
1,179,027,753 400,111,678
(c
2014 39

2018 39
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(e
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(f

(9

32
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2019 30 2018 30

2019 30
2019 30

Ooooooooooooooooooad

1,179,027,753

627,659

1,179,027,753

627,659

1,179,027,753 627,659

1,179,655,412
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2019 30
2019 30
1,689,723 1,689,723
1,689,723 1,689,723
2018 30
2018 30
400,111,678 400,111,678
2,867,561 2,867,561
400,111,678 2,867,561 402,979,239
2018 30
2018 30
392,016 392,016
392,016 392,016
2019 30 2018 30
2019 30 2018 30
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50

12
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(a

0.80
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(b
1974 11
0.05
2019 30 2018 30
(c
500 4.0
500 10 3.0

10 2.5
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2019 30 2018 30
«
0.80

2019 30 2018 30

(e
0.01

2019 30 2018 30
(f

2019 30 2018 30
(9

0.03

2019 30 2018 30
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10 100
10,000 10,000
10 100
10 100
2019 30 2018 30
(
2017 30 13,021,326 494,613 4,797,113
8,936,500 91,999 1,503,941 10,328,962
(2,726,972) (126,591)  (1,516,740) (14,660)
2018 30 19,230,854 460,021 4,784,314 10,314,302
47,644,798 164,999 5,286,066 25,931,262
(2,000,210) (85,245)  (1,223,293) (3.,802,649)

2019 30 64,875,442 539,775 8,847,087 32,442,915
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30

569,804,559

8.783055 171,851,414

8.936234

67,638,668 9,133.925746 51,740,434 9,243.611542
71,831,087 5.475981 39,845,344 6.025962
492,524,315 10.239001 144,834,570 10.160169
10
2019 30 2018 30

11
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2019 30 2018 30
2019 30 2018 30
15
15
2019 30 2018 30
2019 30 2018 30
5.62 12.63
39.82 34.15
2019 30 2018 30
2019 30 2018 30

2019 30
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25,328,255 4,064 25,332,319

1,179,655,412 1,179,655,412

563,016 563,016
31,277,290 31,277,290
25,328,255 1,211,499,782 1,236,828,037
1,689,723 1,689,723
27,549,965 27,549,965
5,789,720 5,789,720
35,029,408 35,029,408
2018 30
9,409,852 9,708 9,419,560
402,979,239 402,979,239
14,463,996 14,463,996
9,409,852 417,452,943 426,862,795
392,016 392,016
12,882,011 12,882,011
5,317,006 5,317,006
18,591,033 18,591,033
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741,458,584 253,187,218 110,036,929 32,213,538 1,136,896,269
741,458,584 253,187,218 110,036,929 32,213,538 1,136,896,269
114,343,057 114,343,057
114,343,057 114,343,057
324,538,348 35,849,580 2,998,574 7,921,606 371,308,108
324,538,348 35,849,580 2,998,574 7,921,606 371,308,108
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10

2019 30 2019 30 2018 30 2018 30
4.5 4.5 ) 3.3 3.3 )
2.3 2.3 ) 2.0 2.0 )
0.4 0.4 ) 0.9 0.9 )
0.3 0.3 ) 0.2 0.2 )
0.9 0.9 ) 1.0 1.0 )
1.6 (1.6 ) 2.3 2.3 )
10.0 (10.0 ) 9.7 .7 )
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2019 30
579,210,599

2018 30

205,085,216

2018 30

580,272,663

202,609,671
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2019 30 2018 30
25,332,319 9,419,560
3,630,000 746,000
627,659 2,867,561
563,016
7,691
27,639,599 13,717,996
57,800,284 26,751,117
2019 30 2018 30
100.00 100.00

100.00 100.00
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2019 30 2018 30

1.76 2.86
65.88 40.74
14.68 9.60

3.75 9.58
13.93 37.22
100.00 100.00

2019 30 2018 30

2019 30 2018 30

12
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30

2018

30

«
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(
100
(
12
2019 30 2018 30
2019 30 2018 30
» 7,224,686 0.60
@ 4,064 0.00@® 9,708 0.00
) 47,087 0.00(
o 43,455 0.01
o 18,056,482 1.51 9,366,397 2.30
25,332,319 2.11 9,419,560 2.31
® 840,000 0.07
® 416,000 0.10
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® 1,180,000 0.10
® 780,000 0.06 330,000 0.08
® 830,000 0.07
3,630,000 0.30 746,000 0.18
®
@
®
©) 0.005
2019 30 2018 30
o 1,461,223 0.36
O 620,000 0.05 1,576,000 0.38
620,000 0.05 3,037,223 0.74
®
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13
2019 30 2018 30
72.891186 82.184429
0.674450 0.723550
14
2019 30 2018 30
15
2019 30 2018 30
16
2019 30
17
18
2019 12 23
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2019 30
7,338,652 1,179,027,753  98.11
1,179,027,753  98.11
01/10/2019  AUD 12,476  USD 8,423 HSBC Bank PLC (12)  (0.00)
01/10/2019  AUD 9,390,800 USD 6,341,809 Australia & - New zealand ., 51y (0.00)

Banking Group Ltd
02/10/2019 AUD 2,052,714 uUsb 1,387,130 Standard Chartered Bank (3,969) (0.00)
Australia & New Zealand (332) (0.00)

01/10/2019  JPY 9,514,765  AUD 130,866 porking Group Ltd
(16,357)  (0.00)

14/11/2019 AUD 133,107  JPY 9,664,080 Standard Chartered Bank 333 0.00
14/11/2019  JPY 54,281,000 AUD 735,844 Standard Chartered Bank 9,914 0.00
13/11/2019 USD 4,955,631 AUD 7,306,347 Standard Chartered Bank 30,339 0.01
13/11/2019 USD 7,143,695 AUD 10,472,066 UBS AG 103,994 0.01
13/11/2019 USD 150,226,024 AUD 222,234,800 HSBC Bank PLC 171,037 0.01

Australia & New Zealand

13/11/2019 USD 171,453,435 AUD 253,520,442 Banking Group Ltd

312,042 0.02

627,659 0.05
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Australia & New Zealand

13/11/2019 AUD 1,493,554 USD 1,012,477 Banking Group Ltd (5,393) (0.00)
13/11/2019 AUD 2,620,113 USD 1,801,000 Standard Chartered Bank (46,222) (0.00)
Australia & New Zealand

14/11/2019 AUD 352,136  JPY 25,979,000 Banking Group Ltd (4,786) (0.00)

14/11/2019 JPY 2,435,785,037 AUD 34,273,089 Westpac Corp (808,213) (0.07)

14/11/2019  JPY 2,456,210,416 AUD 34,554,249 Citibank NA (808,752) (0.07)

(1,673,366) (0.1%)

1,179,027,753 98.11

(16,357) (0.00)

627,659 0.05

(1,673,366) (0.14)

23,832,940 1.98

1,201,798,629 100.00
AUD
JPY
usb
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2018 30

2,635,261 400,111,678 98.00
400,111,678 98.00

03/10/2018  AUD 12,234 USD 8,826 Credit Suisse 36 0.00
03/10/2018  AUD 4,753,091 USD 3,438,096 HSBC Bank PLC 1,399 0.00
04/10/2018  AUD 154,277 JPY 12,620,829 HSBC Bank PLC 687 0.00
04/10/2018  AUD 484,811 USD 349,743 fustralia & New Zealand 1,443 0.00

Banking Group Ltd
3,565 0.00

Australia & New Zealand

02/10/2018 AUD 154,358 USD 112,001 Banking Group Ltd (435) (0.00)
(435) (0.00)
Australia & New Zealand
24/10/2018 AUD 116,602 JPY 9,183,571 Banking Group Ltd 4,692 0.00
24/10/2018 AUD 502,015 JPY 40,976,660 Morgan Stanley 2,678 0.00
24/10/2018 AUD 991,476 JPY 79,347,760 JPMorgan Chase & Co 24,554 0.01
25/10/2018 AUD 384,314 USD 272,869 HSBC Bank PLC 7,249 0.00
25/10/2018 USD 476,000 AUD 642,072 UBS AG 15,690 0.00
25/10/2018 USD 998,483 AUD 1,374,305 Royal Bank of Canada 5,452 0.00
25/10/2018  USD 5,290,107 AUD 7,256,738 hustralia & New  Zealand 53,413 0.01
Banking Group Ltd
25/10/2018 USD 39,323,352 AUD 53,000,049 Barclays Bank PLC 1,339,040 0.33
25/10/2018 USD 52,168,641 AUD 70,678,162 HSBC Bank PLC 1,411,228 0.35
2,863,996 0.70
24/10/2018 AUD 222,824  JPY 18,393,376 Royal Bank of Canada (1,316) (0.00)
25/10/2018 AUD 537,724 USD 392,000 Royal Bank of Canada (3,962) (0.00)
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Australia &

New

Zealand

24/10/2018  JPY 42,572,000 AUD 525,211 g Group Ltd (6,434)  (0.00)
24/10/2018  JPY 217,573,047 AUD 2,658,381 HSBC Bank PLC (7,062)  (0.00)
24/10/2018 JPY  2,064,923,137 AUD 25,267,962 JPMorgan Chase & Co (105,061)  (0.03)
24/10/2018 JPY  2,065,484,011 AUD 25,276,822 Royal Bank of Scotland PLC (107,087)  (0.03)
25/10/2018  USD 7,160,026 AUD 10,054,762 Morgan Stanley (160,659)  (0.04)

(391,581)  (0.10)
400,111,678  98.00
3,565 0.00

(435)  (0.00)
2,863,996 0.70
(391,581)  (0.10)
5,684,539 1.40
408,271,762 100.00

AUD

JPY

USD
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Statements of Financial Position
As at 30 September 2018

Hotes 30-Sep-2M18 30-Sep-2018
AUD AUD
Assets
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3ic) 4 1,179,655 412 402 979, 239
Interest receivable 3ib) 7B -_
Due from brokers:

Collateral armounts e 3,630,000 746,000
Receivable for investments sold 2 563,016 —_
Receivable for Units subscribed gy 8 27 639 559 13,717 585
Cash and cash equivalents 3(d), 12 25332318 8419560
Total Assets 1,236,828,037 426,862,795
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 3e), 4 1,689,723 392016
Due to brokers:

Collateral amounts 3e) §20,000 3037, 223
Payable for investments purchased 2 27,549 965 12,882 0M
Payable for Units redeemed 3{g) 8 585,740 §18,124
Imvestment management fees payable T (a) 2129, 269 711,760
Distribution fees payable 7 () 2,043 364 706,046
Manager fees payable Fl (2] 134,225 44 404
Legal fees payable 83,720 59 2597
Agent company fees payable 71a) 7723 26,779
Audit fees payable 57,333 53,19
Custodian senvice fees payable Tif 27 445 18,632
Interest payable 3 18,832 5033
Trustee fees payable 7ie) 16,760 9 420
Administration and transfer agent fees payable Tic) 14,356 27 057
Miscellaneous fees payable B48 —
Total Liabilities (excluding Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Units) 35,028,408 18,581,033
Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable

Participating Units 1.201,788,628 408,271,762

Thie sccompanying notas form an integral part of the finsncal siEmants.

141/283
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 September 2018

Motes  30-Sep-2018  30-Sep-2018
AUD AUD

Incame
Interest income 3k 105 879 49 851
Met realized gainf{loss) on financal assets and financial
liabilties at fair value through prafit or loss on:
Irvestments 27,824 469 10,519,372
Fareign currency 31,191 596 4 118,653
Met change in unrealized gaindloss) on financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss on:

Investments 10,370,321 7,170,440

Fareign currency {3,535 410) 3,229 270
Met Income 65,956,851 25,087,596
Operating Expenses
Imvestment management fees 7 {a) 5,448 6458 2060514
Distribution fees 7 {d) 5,447 187 2060614
Manager fees 7By 345 455 133,253
Administration and fransfer agent fees 7y 264 433 131,853
Legal fees 255 227 145 408
Agent company fees 7o 205,053 273
Custodian service fees 7N 118 6759 G54 445
Trustee fees 7 {e) 62609 25,758
Audit fees 50 548 45 884
Interest expense 3D 59,159 8977
Miscellaneous expense 3915 3087
Total Operating Expenses 12,270,931 4,760,177
Met Income from Operations 53,685,920 20,327 419
Finance Costs:
Distributions to participating Unitholders 3(h), 10 30,387 558 11,626 373
Change in Met Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeamable Participating Units from Operations 23,298,362 8,701,046
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. 11
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Statermments of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units
For the Year Ended 30 September 2019

Motes 30-Sep-2019 30-Sep-2018
AUD AUD

Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Farticipating

Units at Beginnming of Year 408,271,762 208,530,734
Total Proceeds from redeemable participating Units issued B B53,081,310 241 164 893
Total Payments for redeemable paricipating Units redeemed g (92,852,805) (51,124,911)
Change in net assets attnbutable to holders of redeemabie

participating Linits from operations 23,298 352 8701 046
Met Assats Attributable to Holders of Redeemable

Participating Units at Year End 1,201,798,629 408,271,762
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smlements. 12
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Statements of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended 30 September 2018

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating Linits from operations
Adjustment for:
Exchange gains/{losses) on cash
Digtributions to participating Unitholders
Interest income
Interest expense
Total
Met (Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets:
Due from brokers:
Collateral amourts
Receivable for investments sold
Oiher assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Met Increasel(Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Due to brokers:
Collateral amourts
Fayable for investments purchased
Irvesiment management fees payable
Distribution fees payable
Manager fees payable
Agent company fees payable
Legal fees payable
Custodian service fees payable
Trustee fees payable
Audit fees payvable
Mizcellaneous fees payable
Administration and transfer agent fees payable
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Cash Provided byf{Used in) Operating Activities
Interest receivad
Interest paid
Met Cash Provided byl{Used in) Operating Activitias

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds received from redeemable participating Units issued
Payments for redeemable participating Units redeemed
Distributions to participating Unitholders

Met Cash Provided byl{Used in) Financing Activities
Exchange gains/{losses) on cash

Met increasa/{decreasea) in cash

Cash and cash equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and cash equivalents at End of Year

The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments.

Notes

3(h), 10

3
2

3 (e)
2

7 (a)
7 (d)
7 (b)
g

gy

T (e)

7ie)

144/283

30-Sep-2019 30-Sep-2018
AUD AUD

23798 352 8,701,046
(2,198) {13,587
30,387,558 11,626,373
(105,879) {49,861)
59,159 8977
53,637,002 20,272,948
(2,884,000) (746,000)
(563,016) 258,521
— 15
(T76,676173) (195275302
(2,417,223) 3,037,223
14,667,954 11,579,011
1,417 509 (200,595)
1,337,318 260,243
89,821 17,388
50,944 10,639
24423 33,744
8817 765
7,340 832
4142 (2,235)
849 —
{12,741) 3833

1,297 707 921
(710,000,327) __ (161,117,892)
58,188 49,851
{45,260 (3.944)
(709.956,399) __ (161,071,975)
849,159,707 228,739,334
(92,905,189) (50,767,002)
{30,387 558) {11,626 373)
960 166,345,959
2198 13,587
15,012,759 5,287,571
9,419,560 4,131,989
25,332,319 9,419,560
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Meotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 20 September 2019

Organization

G5 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund (the "Sub-Trust) is a sub-trust of the MUGC GS Cayman Fund {the "Trust™).
The Trust i an open-ended exempted umbrella unit trust established by a trust deed under the Trusts Law (2011
Revision) of the Cayman [slands dated 10 February 2010 {as supplemented or amended from time to time, the “Trust
Dead”) executed by Brown Brothers Harmman Trust Company (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee”) and Mitsubishi LIFJ
Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) S A, (the "Manager”), The Trust is regulated under the Mutual Funds Lar
(Revised),

Goldman Sachs Asset Management Intemational ("GSAMIT), a related party to the Sub-Trust, serves as Investment
Manager pursuant 1o an investment management agreement [Management Agreement’) with the Sub-Trust
The Imvestment Manager is responsible for overseeing and monitoring the day.-fo-day operations of the Sub-Trust's
affairs regarding their nvestments.

The Investment Manager has appointed Goldman Sachs Asset Management (Singapore) Pie. Lid. ("GS Singapare”)
and ama Funds Management Limited ("Yarra”), each a related party of the Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. ("Gaoldman
Sachs”) as Investment Advesors pursuant 1o a Master Infercompany Sub-Advisary Agreement and a Master
Intercompany Sub-Advisory and Participating Affiliate Services Agreement, respectively {collectively, the “Investment
Advisory Agreements’). Under the Investment Advisory Agreements, GS Singapone and Yarra provide the Sub-Trust
with continuous professional investment advice, and effects and manages all transactions on behalf of the Sub.Trust
As compensation for services rendered under the Investment Advisory Agresments, G5 Singapore and Yarra receive
afee

The Sub-Trust commenced operations and launched Uinit classes on the following dates:

- Class of Units Commencemaent Dates
Class ALID 26 Seplember 2012
Ciass JPY (Hedged) 26 Seplembar 2012
Class USD 26 September 2012
Class USO (Heaged) 28 March 2018

The financial stalements are presented in AUD (“Australian Dollar®), the Sub-Trust's funchonal and presentation
currency. The Investment Manager considers that this currency most accurately represents the economic effects of the
undetlying transactions, events and conditions of the Sub-Trust

Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Sub-Trust, (the “Feeder Fund”) is to seek (o provide Unitholders with a long-term total
return consisting of income and capial gains primanly by investing in subordinated term debt securities, perpetual
subordinated debt securites, preferred securities and senior debt securities issued in Australan Dollars thraugh
imeestment into the Australia Enhanced Income Fund 1. In relation to such securities, subordinated term debd securities,
perpetual subordinated debt secunties and preferred securities are collectively referned to as “Hybmd Secunties”. Dueto
this irvestment objective, investors are subject to certain wique nsks. The Sub-Trust's investments in cther funds are
subgect to the terms and condtions of the respective mvestes fund's Offenng Memerandum,

The invesiment abjective of the Master Fund is to seek to primarily invest its assets (excluding cash and cash equivalents)
in a diversified portfolic consisting mainly of Hybrid Securities and senior debt seacurities issued in Australian Dellars.
The Master Fund may invest in securities issued in other cumencies, and also may invest in fived, variable or floating
rales securities.

The irvestrment managers of the Master Fund and the Feedar Fund are the same

The Master Fund may engage in transactions in financial dervative nstruments as part of its general investmeant
policy, including without limitaton, total retum swaps, index futures, contracts for differences, forward foreign currency
coniracts and options.

The Master Fund may utiize transachons in equity index futures, bank il futures, government bond fulures, of common
stocks, primaridy by short selling, in crder to hedge certain exposures,
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Maotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2019

2, Investment Objective (continued)

There can be no assurance that the Sub-Trust's investments will be successful or that the investment objective of the
Master Fund will be achieved or that its portiobo design, risk monitoning and hedgong strategies will be successhul

The significant accounting policies of the Master Fund and the Feader Fund are consistent.

As at 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018, the Feeder Fund hotds 100% of the Master Fund's net assets.
The Master Fund i3 a sub-fund of Goldman Sachs Insttutional Funds ple (the "“Company”), an investment comgany
with vanable cap#al incorporated with limited liability i Ireland with registered number 307105 and established as an
umibrella fund with segregated liabdity between subdunds.

The Feeder Fund invests into the Master Fund. Total subscriptions and redemptions made by the Feeder Fund into the
Master Fund during the year ended 30 September 2019 were ALD 917,520,920 and AUD 176,869,631, respectively,
As at 30 September 2019, there were no capital commitment obligations and the Sub-Trust had AUD 27,548 787 due
to the Master Fund for unsettled purchases and AUD 583,018 due from the Master Fund for unseltied sales. Total
subscriptions and redemplions made by the Feeder Fund into the Master Fund during the year ended 30 September
2018 wese ALUD 245922510 and ALUD 71,183 782, respectively. As at 30 September 2018, there were no capital
commitment obligations and the Sub-Trust had AUD 12,882,011 due to the Master Fund for unsattled purchases and
ALUD nil dwe from the Master Fund for unsettied sales.

The Fesder Fund invests into the Master Fund by purchasing the Master Fund's redesmable participating shares.
The Master Fund allows redernptions of these shares on any business day.

Movements in the fair value of the Master Fund's pertfolio and corresponding movements in the fakr value of the Master
Fund may expose the Feeder Fund to a loss.

3, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{a) Financial Statements
Basziz of Preparation of Financial Slalements

The preparation of the financial statements is in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS"),
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of
financial assets and kablilities (nchuding dervative instruments) at far value through profit or loss. The preparation of
the financial statements requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that may affect the amounts
reparted in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

i Hew standards, amendments and interpretations effective for annual perieds beginning on or after 1
January 2018 and were effective or applicable to the Sub-Trust

Thete ate po new standards, amendments and mterpretations to exishing standards that have been adopled by the
Sub-Trust

il Hew standards, amendments and interpretations issued but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Sub-Trust

Cn T June 2017, the Intemational Accounting Standards Board ("IASE” or the "Board™) issued IFRIC Inferpretation 23
— Uncertainty ower Income Tax Treatments (the “Interpretation”). The Interpretation clarifies applicatson of recognition
and messurement requirements in 1AS 12 Income Taxes when there s uncenainty over miome tax treatrments. The
Interpretation is effective for annual reporting peniods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but certain transition reliefs
are available. Based on the Sub-Trust's assessment, this new standard is not expected to have a significant impact on
the financial statements of the fund or performance.

There are no ather standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that are not yet effectve that would
be expected to have a significant impact on the Sub-Trust
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Maotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2019

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
[1:1] Investment Transactions, Related Investment Income and Operating Expenses

The Sub-Trust records its investment transactions on a trade date basis Realzed gains and losses are basad on
the First In First Cut ("FIFQY) method, Dividend income and dividend expense are recorded on the ex-dividend date
and interest income and interest expense are accrued over the life of the investment. Overdraft expenses which are
accrued as incurred, if any, are included in interest expense. Interest income incledes acoretion of market discount,
original issue discounts and amartization of premiums and is recorded into income over the life of the underlying
vestment Interest income and divedend incorme ane recognized and presented on a gross basis belore wathholding
tax, if any, in the Staternents of Comgrehensive Income. Reimbursement of expenses is represented in the Staternents
of Comprehensive Income, if any.

Operating and organizational expenses are recognized on an accrual basis,
Transaction costs, when incurred, are recognized in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

The Sub-Trust wil ales bear its offering and caganizational expenses and the inshial and angeing expenses incurred
im connection with the offer and sale of Units, including printing costs, marketing costs, legal fees, expenses incurred
in connection with the review of subscription agreements and refated documentation and ather expenses of the Sub-
Trust, the Manager, the Trustee, the Investment Manager, the Global Distributor and the Administrator. The offering
and organizatonal expenses of the Sub-Trust, if any, are disclosed in the Statements of Comgrehensive Income for the
years ended 30 Septernber 2018 and 30 September 2018, respectively,

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar nights are not the dominant factor in
deciding who contrals the entity, such as when any vating rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant
activibes are directed by means of contractual arrangements. A structured entity often has some or all of the fallowing
features or attributes; (a) restricted activiies, (b) a narrow and well-delined objective, such as to provide investment
opportunities for investors by passing on risks and rewards associated with the assets of the structured entity to
investors, (¢ insufficdent equity to permit the structured entity to finance its activities without subordinated financial
support and (d) financing in the form of multiple contractually linked instruments to investors that create concentrations
of credit or other risks (tranches)

The Master Fund finances their cperations by issuing redeemahle shares which are puttable at the holder's option and
entiles the holder o a proporbonal stake in the respective Sub-Trust's net assets. The Sub-Trust holds redeemakble
shares in its Master Fund.

The Sub-Trust's maximum exposure to loss from its interests in the Master Fund s equal to the total fair value of its
investrents in the Master Fund

Once the Sub-Trust has disposed of its shares in the Master Fund the Sub-Trust ceases to be exposed to any risk from
that Master Fund

As at 30 September 2019 and 30 Septermber 2018, the net asset value of the Master Fund was AUD 1,179,027 753
and ALICK 400,111 675, respectively

<) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
i Cilasaifcation

The Sub-Trust classifies its investments based on both the Sub-Trust's business model for managing those financial
assets and the contractual cash flow charactenstics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assels is managed
and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The Sub-Trust is primarily focused on fair value information and
usas that infarmation to assess the assets' performance and te make decisions. The Sub-Trust has not taken the option
to irrevocably designate any equity securties as fair value through other comprehensive income. The contractual cash
fleres of the Sub-Trust's debt securities are solely principal and interest, however, these securities are nedther held
for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows nor held both for collecting contractual cash flows and for sale,
The collection of contractual cash flows is only incidental to achieving the Sub-Trust's business model's objective.
Conseguently. all imvestrments are measured at fair value through profit of loss.
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Maotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss {continued)
i Recognition and Derecognition

The Sub-Trust recognizes financial assets and fnancial liabilites on the date it becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the investrment. Purchases and sales of financial assets and financial kabilties are recognized using trade
date accaunting, From trade date, any gaing and |esses ansing from changes in fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabdities are recorded in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assels are derecognized when the rights to receive cash fiows from the mvestmeants have expired or the Sub-
Trust has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership,

13 Fair Value Measurement Frinciples

IFRS 8 published in July 2014, has replaced previcus guidance in |AS 39 and includes revised guidance on the
classification and measurement of financial instruments, EMective for regarting penads begmning on o after 1 January
2018 it carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from 1AS 38,

Unger IFRS 8, dassdication and measurement of debt asses will be driven by the entity’s business madel for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. A debt instrument is measurad
at amortized cost if the objectve of the business maodel is 1o hold the financials asset for the collection of the contractual
ﬁéﬂglm and the contractual cash fiows under the instrument solely represents payments of prncipal and interest
{"SPFI7).

A debt instrument is meagured at fair value through eomprahensive income if the objectve of the business model is
to heldd the financial asset both to collect contractual cash flows from SPPI and to sell. All other debt instruments must
be recognized at fair value through profit o loss. An enlity may however, at inftial recognition, irevocably designate
a fmancial asset as measured at fair value through proft or loss if deing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement of recognition inconsistency.

Derivative and equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit or kboss unless, for equity instruments not
hekd for trading, an irevocable option s taken 1o measune at fair value throwgh ofher comprehensive income.

Uncier IFRS O the Sub-Trust's investment portiolio continues to be intally recarded at their transaction price and then
measured at fair value subsequent to initial recognition. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
‘financial assets or financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss” category are presented in the Statements of
Comgrehensive Income in the period in which they anse.

Financial assets clazsified as recenvables ang camied ab amortized cost, f any. Financial kabdties, other than thase
at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at amorbzed cost Financial liabdities arising from redeemable Units
issued by the Sub-Trust are camied at the redemplion amount representing the Unitholders' nght to a residual amount
of the Sub-Trust's Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units ("Net Assets™).

As a resull, the adoption of IFRS 8 has not had any material impact on the Sub-Trust's financial statements.
The fair value of all securities and desvatives is determined according to the following pokcies

(it} Debl Securites
Diebt secuntes, comprising corporate debt, are valued on the basis of dealer supplied quotations or by using a third

party pricing senvice, When a debt security has been identified as being in default, the interest accrual on the defaulled
security may be stopped and, upon confirmation from relevant parties, the amount receivable may be waitten off.

] Exchange Listed Assels and Liabiilies

The fair value of exchange traded financmal investments, comprising common stock and shor-term investments, is
based upon guoted market prices at the year end date without any deduction for estimated future transaction costs,
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Maotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss {continued)
i Fair Value Measurement Principles (condinued)

(i) Money Marke! Investments

Money market investments are valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair valee.

(i) Shares in Collective Investment Schemes

The fair value of investments in open-ended investrment funds, including collectve investiment schemes, is based
upon the official published Met Asset Value ("MAV™) per share as suppled by the administrative agent of the funds in
accordance with valuation policy of applicable funds as outlined in the respective Offering Memorandum.

(s Derivatives

A derivative is an instrument whose fair value is derved from an underlying instrument, index reference rate or a
combinabon of these factors. Dervative nstruments may be privately negotiated contracts which are often referred 1o
as over the counter ("OTC) derivatives ar they may be listed and traded on an exchange. Derivative contracts may
vohe fulure commadments to purchase or sell inancial mstruments or commaodibes at specified terms on a specied
date, or to exchange interest payment streams or currencies based on a notional or contractual amount.

Dedvative contracts ane stated at fair value and recognized as inancial assets and financial liabilites on the Staternents
of Financial Position, Gains and losses resulting from the change in the fair value are reflected on the Statements of
Comgprehensave Income as a compeonent of change in unrealized gain/{loss). Realized gains or losses are recorded on
terrminaban of fram pernodic cash Now payiments

(iSa)  Forward Foreign Currency Contracls

In a forward foreign currency contract, the Sub-Trust agrees to receive or deliver a fixed quantity of one currency for
another, at a pre-determined price at a future date, Purchases and sales of forward toreign currency contracts having
the same noticnal value, settlement date, counterparty and right to settle net are generaly offsat {which result in a net
foresgn currency position of Zeqo with the counterparty) and any reaized gains of knsses ara recognized on trade date,

Forward foreign currency contracts ane valued at mid by third party pricing service providers,

(i) All Securities and Derfvalives

If a quoted market price 5 not available from a third party pricing senvice or a dealer, or a quotation & believed
to be matenally iraccurate, the fair value of the investrment s determened by using valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques include the use of recent market ransactions, rfenence to the current fair value of another imvestment that
is substantially the same, discocunted cash flow analyses or any other techniques that provides a reliable estimate of
prices oblained in actual market transactions.

Such securities and derivatives shall be valued at their probable realzation value as determined by a Valuer. The
Waluer during the years ended 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018 was Gokdman Sachs & Co. LLC and the
valuation function was perdormed by Goldman Sachs Consumer and Investment Management Division Controfiers
{CIMD Controllers).

The investments have been valued in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles that require the use
of certain estimates and assumptions. Although these estimates and assumptions are based on the best available
infesrraban, actual results could be matenally diferent from thess estimates,

There were no secunites where the Valuer was used to determine fair value duning the years ended 30 September 2019
and 30 September 2018,
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2018

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss {continued)
v Transfers bebween levels of the fair value herarchy

Transfers between levels of the fair value hwerarchy, if any, are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the
reporting pericd.

{d)  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents (short term, highly Bgquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an inssgnificant risk of changes n value), including time deposits and cerificates of deposit,
are valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

Cedificates of deposit and time deposits are reclassfed from fmancial assets at fair value through profit or loss o cash
and cash egquivalents as they are short term, highly liquid, readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to
an msgnificant risk of changes in value.

i) Due framite Brokers

Due fromfto brokers consists primarly of cash collateral and marngin amounts receivable from/payable to the Sub-
Trust's clearing brokers and various counterparties. Collateral amounts due fromito broker balances are valued at cost
The amounts recervable from and payable to brokers represents cash setlied in the Sub-Trust's brokes accounts., Thess
balances are related to cash held as collateral or margin on swaps and futures with clearing counterparties, fulures
margin cash recewablefpayable to the Sub-Trusts futures clearing merchants, and centrally cleared swaps margin
cash receivable/payable to the Sub-Trust's centrally cleared swaps clearing merchants.

These amounts are recognized initeally at far value and subsequently measured at amoteed cost. The Sub-Trest's
due from brokers balances ane subject to the expected credit loss model within IFRS 9. Mo balances are considersd
imgaired and no amownts have been witten off in the penisd,

Coflateral amounts and marngin amcunts included in Due fromfto brokers are disclosed in the Statements of Financial
Pasibon as at 30 September 2019 and 30 Septernber 2018, respectively.

in Fereign Currency Transiation

Transactions in foreign curencies are translated at the foreign currency exchange rate in effect at the date of the
transaction. Assets and liabilties of the Sub-Trust denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency of the Sub-Trust at the foreign currency exchange rabe in effect at the year end date,

Foreign cumency exchange differences arssing on translation and realized gains and losses on disposals or setfernents
of asests and liabdibes are recognized in the Statements of Compighensive |ncome, Fofeign clfrenty exchange gains
of losses relating to investments at fair value through profit or loss and all ather foreign currency exchange gains or
lcssas relating to monetary items, including cash, are reflectad in the net realized gain/(less) on investments or net
change in unrealzed gainf{loss) on investments in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

[£]] Redeemable Units
All redeemable participating Units issued by the Sub-Trust provides the Unitholders with the right to redeem for cash at
the value proportionate to the Unitholder's share in the Sub-Trust's net assets on the redemption date. In accordance
with 145 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation”, such Uinits have been classified as a financial liabity at the value of

the redemption amount in the Statements of Financial Position. The Sub-Trust is contractually cbliged to redeem Units
im accordance with the Offering Memorandum.

{h} Distributions Payable to Holders of Redeemable Units

DistnbutonsDividends payable on the redeemable paricipatng Units are recognized in the Statements of
Comprehensve Income as Fnance Costs.
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2018

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under the amendment to IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” are described
Ehoney

Lewel 1 — Unadjusted guoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical,
unrestricted assets or kabilties,

Level 2 - Quoted prces in markets that are not active o financial instruments for which signicant inputs are observable
{including but not limited to quoted prices for simlar securities, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, volatilty and credit
spreads), either directly or indrectly. This may include the Valuer's assumptions in deterrmining fair value measurerment;

Lewel 3 — Prices or valuations that require significant uncbservable inputs (including the Valuer's assumptions in
determining fair value measurement)

The bevel in the fair value hserarchy within which the fair value measurement is categonzed in its entirety shall be
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in #s entirety. For
this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair
value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustrment based on unobsanvable inputs, that
measurement is a Level 3 measurement Assessing the signficance of a particular input to the fair value measurement
im its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

As at 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2015, the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss contain
imvestmants in underlying funds that have been fair valued in accordance with the policies set out above. The shares
of the underlying funds are not publicly traded, redemptions can only be made by the investor funds on the redemption
dates and are subject to the required notice periods spectied in the Offering Memorandum. As a result, the carrying
value of the underlying funds may not be indicative of the value ultimately realized on redemption.

The fair wvalue of the investments in the underlying funds = pnmarily based on the latest available redemgphion price as
reported by the admanistrator of the underdying funds. The investor funds may make adjustments to the value based on
consikderations such as; liquidity of the investor funds' holding in the underlying funds or their underlying investments,
the value date of the NAV provided and any restrctions on redemptions.

The following tables show financial assets and financial labatties recognized at fair value, analyzed between the three
levels described previously:

Financlal Assets measured at falr value
I0-Sep-2019
Fair walue measunremneant at 30=-Sep-2019
Lewel 1 AUD Level 2 ALUD Lewel 3 ALID Tobad ALID

Financial assets at fair value through prolit or loss

Inwestiment Fund 1178027, 753 -— -— 1179027, 753

Forward Foreign Cumency Contracls = B2T 655 = B2T 655

Todal 1.178,027,753 627 558 — 1179655 412
Financial Liabllitles measured at falr value
I0-Sep-2010

Fair value measurement at 30-Sep-2019
_ Level 1 AUD Level 2 AUD Level 3 AUD Totad ALID

Financial liabilfies al far walue through proft or loss

Forward Foreign Cumency Contracts — 1,689,723 — 1689723

Tolal — 1,689,723 — 1,689,723
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2018

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

Financial Assets measured at Tair value
30-Sep-2018
Fair value measunement at N-EEP-"'U'IB
Lewel 1 AUD Level 2AUD Level 3 AUD Tetal ALD

Financial assels at fair value through profit o loss

Irvestrent Fund 400,111,678 - - 400,111 578
Forward Forsign Cumency Conlracls - 2 BET SB1 - 2 BET SE1
Total 400,111,678 2057 561 —_ 402,579,239

Finamncial Liabilithes measured at falr value
J0-Sep-2018
Faif walue rreasunerment at 30-Sep-2018

—Level AUD  _ Level2AUD | _ Level3AUD  __ TolalAUD

Financial labifies al far value (hrough proft of loss

Forward Foreign Cumency Conlracls — 392 016 — 392 016
Todal —_ 32018 —_ 382,018

Dwring the years ended 30 September 20109 and 30 September 2018, there were no transfers beteeen Level 1, Level 2
and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and financial liabilibes which were recorded at fair value,

There were no securities leveled at Leved 3 at 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities not carried at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed

Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdraft, if any, are classified as Level 1. All other assets and liabilites nat
measured at fair value but for which faxr value is disclosed are classified as Level 2. Refer to the Statements of Financial
Position for a breakdown of assets and liabilties and to Note 3{c) for a description of the valuation techniques

The puttable value of redeemable participating Units classified as a financial liability is calculated based on the net
difference betwesn total assets and all other liabilbes of the Sub-Trust in accordance with the Sub-Trust's Offering
Memorandum. These Units are not traded on an active market. A demand feature s attached to these Units, as they
afe redeernable at the holders' opbion and can be put back to the Sub-Trust at any dealing date for cash equal to
proportionate Units of the Sub-Trust's NAV attributable to the Units class. The fair value is basad on the amount payabie
on demand, discountad from the first date that the amount could be required to ke paid. The impad of discounting
im this instance is not materal. As such, Level 2 is deemed to be the most appropriate categorization for net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating Units.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Derivafives

In arger to better define its contractual rights and to secure rights that will help the Sub-Trust mitigate its counterparty
risk, the Sub-Trust may enter into an International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. Master Agreement [“ISDA
Master Agreement”) or similar agreements with its derivatrve contract counterparties, An 1SDA Master Agresmeant
s a bilateral agreement betwean the Sub-Trust and a counterparty that governs OTC derivatives, including foraign
exchange contracts, and typically contains, among ather things, coltateral pasting terres and netting provisions in the
event of a default andlor termination event The provisions of the 1S0A Master Agreement typically permit a single
net payment in the event of a default (close-out netting) or similar event, including the bankruptey or insolvency of the
counterparty.

Collateral and margm requerernents difer between exchange traded dervatives and OTC dervatves Margn
requirements are estabkshed by the broker or clearing house for exchange-traded and centrally cleared dervatives
{fin@ncial futures contracts, options and centrally cleared swaps) pursuant to the governing agreements for those
instrument types. Brokers can ask for margin in excess of the minimum in certain creumstances. Collateral terms are
confract-specific for OTC dervatives (foreign currency exchange contracts, options and certain swaps). For dervatives
traded under an 1SDA Master Agreement, the collateral requirements are typically calculated by netting the mark-to-
markel amount for each transacton under such agreament and companng that amount 1o the value of any collateral
currently pledged by the Sub-Trust and the counterparty. Additionally, the Sub-Trust may be required to post additional
coliateral to the counterparty i the form of intial margin, the terms of which would be outlined in the confirmation of
the OTC transaction.
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Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities {continued)
Derivatives (continued)

For financial reporting purposes, cash collateral that has been pledged to cover obligations of the Sub-Trust and cash
coltateral recerved from the counterparty, o any, 1S reported separately on the Statements of Financml Position as dueg
fromidue to broker. Non-cash collateral pledged by the Sub-Trust, if any, is noted in the Schedules of Investments.
Generally, the amount of collateral due from or 1o a counterparty must excesd a minimum transfer amount threshold
before a transfer is required to be made. To the extent amounts due to the Sub-Trust from its counterparties are naot
fully collateralized, contractually or othenwise, the Sub-Trust bears the nsk of loss from counterparty nonperonmance,
The Sub-Trust attempts to mitigate counterparty risk by only entering into agreements with counterparties that & believes
to be of good standing and by menitoring the financial stability of those counterparties.

Additionally, the netting of assets and liabilities and the offsettng of collateral pledged or received are based on
confraciual netling/sel-off provisions in the |S0DA Master Agreement or samilar agresments. However, in the event of a
default or insahvency of a counterparty, a court could determine that such rights are net enforceable due to restrictions
or prohibitions against the right of setoff that may be imposed due to a particular junsdiction’s bankmuptcy or insohency
laws.

Taxation

There are at present no corporation, income, capital gains, profis or other taxes in the Cayman Islands which would
apply to the prafits in respect of the Sub-Trust Nor are there gift, estate or inheritance taxes in the Cayman lslands.
The Trustee has applied for and has received from the Governor-in-Cabinet of the Cayman Islands an undertaking in
accordance with Secton 81 of the Trusts Law (as amended) that for a penod of 50 years from the date of the creation
of the Master Trust no law which s thereafter enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any taxes or duty to be levied
on income of on capital assets, gains or appreciation or any tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax shall
apply to the property comprised in or any income arising under the Sub-Trust or to the Trustee or Unitholders thereof
in respect of any Such property of income. provided that a Unithalder who 1 at any tirne resident or domiced in the
Cayman Islands (other than any object of a charitable trust or power or an exempted or ordinary non-resident company
incorperated in the Cayman |slands) shall be liable in and in respect of such time to all and any tax and duty as i
such undertaking had never been given and ncthing in the relevant section of the Trusts Law shall be construed as
exempting any such person resident of dormiciled in the |sknds fram any law impesing  any tax of duty referred to in
the Tirusts Law

The Sub-Trust invests in securiies issued by entities which are domiciled in countries ather than the Cayman Islands.
Many of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non residents,
such as the Sub-Trust Typically, these capital gains taxes are reguired to be determined on a selff assessment basis
and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Sub-Trust's brokers on a “withhalding™ basis.

In accordance with |AS 12 - Income Taxes, the Sub-Trust is required to recognize a tax liability when it is probable that
the tan laws of foreign countries require 3 tax liability 1o be assessed on the Sub-Trust's capidal gains sourced from
such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full knowiedge of all the facts and crcumstances

The tax [sbility is then measured at the amount expected to be paxd to the relevant taxation authordies usng the tax
l@wvs and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. There is sometimes
uncertainty about the way enacled tax law is applhed to offshore investment funds. This creates uncerainty about
whether or not a tax Rability will ultimately be paid by the Sub-Trust Therefore when measuring any uncertain tex
labilities management considers all of the: relevant facts and circumstances available at the tme which could influence
the likelfhood of payment, including any farmal or informal practices of the relevant tax authorities,

For the years ended 30 Septernber 2018 and 30 September 2018, the Sub-Trust has measured uncertain tax liabilities
and related interest and penalties with respedt o fﬂl‘ﬁiﬂl‘l capital gains taxes at nil. Whike this represents management
best estimate there remains a nsk that foreign tax authorities wall attempt to collect taxes on capital gains earned by the
Sub-Trust. This could happen without giving any prier waming, possibly on a retrospective basis, and could result in a
substantial loss to the Sub-Trust
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T. Significant Agreements and Related Parties
{a) Investment Management and Advisors Fee

Under the terms of the Management Agreement, the Investment Manager receves, from the assets of the Sub-Trust,
o guartery fee accruing daly and calculated and paid on a quarterly basis in armears egual to 0.60% of the Sub-
Trust's average MAV, determined as of the last business day of the applicable quarter end, adjpssted to reflect any
subscriptions, redemptions and distributions during the applcable catendar guaner In additon, subject to the consent
of the Investment Manager, the Trustee reserves the nght to waive fees, or impase greater of lesser fees on, aor to
retate all or a portion of any of the investment management fees to any Unitholder, inciuding affiliates of the Investment
Manager, as may be agreed to by the Investment Manager, Trustee and the applicable Unitholder. The imvestment
management fees are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensie Income for the years ended 30 September 2018
and 30 September 2018, respectively

The Sub-Trust invests in underlying funds which also pay mvestment management fees 1o the investment advisors
who are related parties to Yarra and G5 Singapore. The Sub-Trust indirectly bears the expenses paid by the underlying
fund. The table below sets forth the fee rate for the underlying fund and is as follows:

Annual Fao
Undirlying Fund Rate %
Ausiralia Enhanced Income Fund I, Class 10 (Acc). AUD shares nil

(b} Manager Fee

Mitsubsh UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Lucembourg) SA. ("MIBL" or the "Manager’) serves as the Manager of
the Sub-Trust

MIBL has been authorized asa commercial bank and is regulated in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg by the Commission
de Surveilance du Sectew Financier ("CS5SF7). It was incorporated in Luxembourg as a société ancnyme on 11 Apnl
1874 a5 a magority=cwned subsidiary of The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd

The Manager receies, from the assets of the Sub-Trust a fee accruing daily and paid on a quarterly
basis in amears equal to 0.05% of the Sub-Trust's average MAV. The manager fees for the years ended
30 September 2018 and 30 September 2018, are disciosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income, respectively,

{e) administration and Transfer Agent Fea

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. ("BEBH") s the Sub-Trust's Administrator and Transfer Agent The Admanistrator and
Transter Agent perfom certain day-1o-day adminstratve tasks on behalf of the Sub-Trust, inciuding maintenance of the
Sub-Trust's books and records, calculation of the NAY and payments of the Sub-Trust's expenses

BBH is paid solely out of the assets of the Sub-Trust including asset-based, safekeeping, ransaction, servicing and
other fees as may be agreed upon from time to time with the Investment Manager. Additionally, at month end, the
secuntes for the Sub-Trust are segregated based on the transaction fype and a fee rate = applied The Sub-Trust will
pay such fees monthly in arrears.

Annual administration and transfer agent charges on the value of month end average net assets will be assessed at the
Sub-Trust level, based on the following schedule:

Bssels up to USD 500 million 40bps
FAssets betwesn RSO 500 milkon — USD 1 bilkon 30bps
Assets abowe USD 1 billicn 25bps

Thas &dm inesiration and TramsTer Agent fees ars comeed feom ALUD o LISDH

The administration and transfer agent fees are diclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years
ended 30 September 2010 and 30 September 2018, respectively.
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T. Significant Agreements and Related Parties (continued)
{d} Distribution Fee

The Global Distributor receives a fee, accruing daily and paid on a quarterly basis in arrears, equal to 0.80% of the Sub-
Trust's average NAY, adjusted to reflect any subscripbons, redemptions or distributions during the applicable calgndar
quarter.

The distnbution fees e dgclosed in the Staterments of Comprebensive Income for the years ended
30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018, respectivaly.

() Trustes Fee

Brown Brothers Hariman Trust Company (Cayman) Limited acts as the Trustee for the Sub-Trust The Trustes &
responsible for the overall supervision of the Sub-Trust's assets, pursuant to the terms of the Declaration of Trust The
Sub-Trust will pay such fees, monthly in arrears, o the Trustee equal to 0.01% of the average NAV.

The ftrustes fees are disclosed 0 the Statements of Comprehensive |ncome for the years ended
30 September 2019 and 20 Seplamber 2018, respeciively

if Custodian Fee

The Trustes has delegated the responsibility for custody of the Sub-Trust's assets to BBH. The custedian carres out the
usual dubies regarding custody, cash and securities deposits, without any restriction. Fees are charged on safekeeping
of securibes on a monthly basts, At month end, the securities for the Sub-Trust are segregated based on the country of
anigin. The USD equivalent fair value is derived for each security and a fee rate is applied based on country of arigin

The custcdian fees are disclosad in the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended
30 September 2019 and 20 Seplember 2018, respeciively.

(g} Agent Company Fee

Goldman Sachs Asset Management Co., Lid. acts as the Agent Company in Japan of the Sub-Trust The Agent
Company receives a fee, accruing daily and paid on a quarterly basis in arrears, equal to 0.03% of the Sub-Trust's
average NAV.

The agent company fees are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended
30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018, respecively

8, Redeemable Participating Units
Classes Issue Price Minimum Initial Subscription
AUD AUD 10 AUD 100
JPY (Hedged) JEY 10,000 JEY 10,000
usD ust 10 Us0 100
USD (Hedged) Ush 19 USD 100

Units will be offered for sale on each business day at the NAY per Unit of the applicable class.

Unis are redeemable at the option of the Unitholder upon notice given in accordance with the terms of the Offering
Memerandurmn. Linits will be redeemead at the NAY per Unit of the applicable Class prevailing as of close of business on
the applicable Redemption Date, provided that the [nvestment Manager may, in its sole discretion, reduce such amount
by any expenses incurred in connection with such redemption

Units of the Master Fund are atso redeemable atthe option of the Unitholder on demand upon notice gkven in accordance
with the tedms of the Ofering Memarandurm,

Az of 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018, the Sub-Trust had three Unitholders, one of which is a related party
to the Manager.
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10.

1.

Redeemable Participating Units (continued)

The following summarizes the activity in the Sub-Trust's Units.

Husnber of Units:

Clags JPFY Clags USD

Clags AUD (Hedged) Class USD [Hedged)

Balance 30 Beptember 2047 13,024,328 464,513 4,707,113 —_
Subseriptons of moewmesie part opating Urnits 8,638,800 1,858 1,503,841 10,358, 82
Aedemptions of ecesmable participating Unis (2 T2 9735 (1255815 :1.5'&]"“!! ;14.@
Balance 30 Beplember 2018 19,230,854 460,021 4,784,314 0,344,307
Subseripheng of bl ot cipating Lisis 47644, 758 164,999 5,286,066 25,50 22
Fiedernptions of recesmable parbopating Unks 1200010 865, 24 5) 133, ) (802 B45)
Balance 30 Seplember 2019 B4, BT5 442 30,775 E8A7.087 J2. 442,915

HAY per Unit

The consideration recaived or paid for redeemable participating Units issued or re-purchased respectively is based on
the value of the Sub-Trust's net assets value per redeermable participating Units at the date of the transaction,

The NAY and MAVY per Linit for each Linit class outstanding for the Sub.-Trest are as follows:

30-Sep-2019 30-Sep-201E
Unit Class Hat Assot Valug WA Per Unit Nt Assol Value HAW Pes Unit
Class AUD AUD 569804559  AUD 5783055 ALD 171851414 AUD [EETFET
Class JPY [Hedged) AUD 67538668  JPY 0133925746 AUD 51740434 JPY 0243511542
Class UsD AUD 71,821,087 uso SAT881 AUD 39,845,344 uso B.025962
Class USD (Hedged) AUD 492524315 UED  10.235001 AUD 144834 570 S0 10160168

Distributions

Distributions are made at the election of the: Investment Manager and the amounts declared and paid during the years
ended 30 September 2019 and 30 Septermber 2018 are disclosed in the Statements of Camprehensive Income when
net assets atiributable Haolders of Redeemable Partiapating Uinits are classified as a financal liabilty. Dstributons
to Unitholders reduce the Sub-Trust's WAV per Unit without any corresponding change in the number of Units per
Ungholdes. This results in a Unitholdes's overall investment in the Sub-Trust being reduced. In addibon, any distributions
paid duning a pericd which are in excess of the Sub-Trust's accumulated net incomed(loss) from cperations results in a
partion of the dstributions being a return of capital

Financial Investments and Associated Risks

The Sub-Trust's investing activilies expose it to vanous types of nsks that are assocated with the financial investments
and markets in which the underlying Master Fund invests. These may be both dervative and non-derivative financial
investments, The Sub-Trust's investment portfolio is comprised of a sole underlying fund and derivative investments
at the period end. The Trustee has appointed the Investment Advisors lo manage the nisks of the Sub-Trust The
significant types of financial nsks which the Sub-Trust is exposed 10 are market mek, liqusdity nsk and credit sk, The
Offering Memarandum provides details of these and other types of risk some of which are additonal to the information
provided in these financial statements.

Asset allocation is determined by the Sub-Trust's Investment Advisors who manage the allocation of assets to achiewve
the investiment obgectve as detailed in Note 2 Achievemnent of the investment cbjective involves taking risks. The
Investrnent Advisors exercise judgment based on analysis, research and risk management technigues when making
imvestrment decisions. Divergence from the benchmark andlor the target asset allocation and the compasition of the
portfolo is monitored in accordance with the Sub-Trust's risk management policy.

25

156/283



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2019

11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)

The existence of multiple investment vehicles investing in the same underlying fund, presents cerain unigue nsks to
investors. The Sub-Trust may be materially afected by the achons of another antly investing in the same underlying
fund. Far example, if another Unitholder of the underlying fund redeems some or all of its interests, the Sub-Trust,
may expenence higher pro rala operating expenses, thereby producing kower retums. Sirrilarly, the underlying fund
may become less diverse due to redempbions from its other Unitholders, resulting in increased portfolio risk. The
undedying fund may restnct ds investrment actviies of be precluded from investing i certain instrurments due to
regulatony restrictions on certain of #s direct or indirect investors or otheraise, which may have an adverse effect on the
perfarmance of the underlying fund, and, in turn, the Sub-Trust

The risk management policies employed in relation to the Sub-Trest are detailed below:

() Market Risk

The patential for changes in the fair value of the Sub-Trust's investment portfolio is referred to as market risk. Commanly
used categories of market nak incluede currency risk, interest rate nsk and other price rgk

. Cumency sk may result from exposures to changes in spot prices, forward prices and volatilties of currency
rales

. Interest rate risk ray result from exposures to changes in the level, slope and cunvature of the varicus yield
curves, the volatility of interest rates, mortgage prepayment speeds and credit spreads.

. Other price nek is the risk that the value of an mwvestment will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices
other than those ansng fram currency fisk or interest rabe rsk and may result from exposures to changes n
the prces and volatidies of individual equiies, equity baskets, equity indices, and commaodities.

The market risk strategy is driven by the Sub-Trust's mwestment risk and return objectives.

Market risk i managed through the application of risk budgeting principles. The Investment Advisors determing an
appropriate risk target, commonly referred to as Tracking Emar, employing a risk budgeting framensaork

A Market Risk Analysis Group at Goldman Sachs (IMD MRA') is responsible for independently monfioding, analyzing
and reporting the market risks taken by the Investment Advisors. IMD MRA uses a number of risk metnics to monitor the
market risks including mondoning senstivities, and Tracking Error.

Details of the Sub-Trust's investment portfolio at the reporting date are disclosed in the Schedules of Investments. Al
individual collective investment schemes and derivative investments are disclosed separately.

(i) Currency Risk

Each currency class of the portfolio will seek to hedge against each relevant cumency (with the exception of the USD
class which s discussed further below). This is referred o as Class Hedging. Moreover, where a Unitholder invests in
Units of a Hedged Class that are hedged into a class currency other than the home currency of the Ungtholder's own
jurisdiction, such Unitholder will be exposed to the significant risk that the class currency will depreciate against such
harme currency.

Hedaging with the relevant class currency i not necessarly complete and each cumency class may be subject to
eurfency exchange Muctluation of the currency in which the Units have been issued,

The assats of the Sub-Trust are denominated in AUD, the value of the USD Class will fluctuate in line with the LSD/
AUD exchange rate regardless of underlying performance.

In principle, each clase of the Sub-Trust is hedged to the currency of that class with the exception of the USD class,
Hedging gains and losses, with respect to hedging activily undedaken by the Sub-Trust on behalf of a Cuwrrency Class,
are allocated solely to that respective currency class,
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11 Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
fa) Market Risk [continued)
{i) Currency Risk (continued)

The Sub-Trust may invest in financial investments and enter into transactions denomanated in cumencies cther than
thedr functional currency, Consegquently, the Sub-Trust may be exposed to risks that the exchange rate of their functional
currency relatve to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that
porton of the Sub-Trust's assets or Eabilties denominated in currencies other than their functional currency. Pleass
refer to the Schedules of Investments of the Sub-Trust which deta@is irvestments in currencies other than its functional
currency. At 30 September 2018 and 20 September 2018, substantially all non-AUD investments were hedged to the
AUD. This is referred to as Portfolio Hedging.

When an investor invests into a Linit class which is in a different currency to the base currency of the Sub-Trust in which
it invests, the currency risk of the imvestor will be different to the currency nsk of the Sub-Trust

The Sub-Trust had no significant cusrency risk exposure at 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018

Atthough not affecting total Sub-Trust net income, the value of the LSO ciass will fluctuate in line with LISCVALID
exchange rate. Therefore, a 15% appreciation/depreciation in the USD will impact the net assets of the respective USD
class by +1- 15% and will not have any impact on the other classes.

The Sub-Trust had following currency concentrations, including hedging, greater than +/-5% of MAY a5 at 30 September

212 and 30 September 2018
Cummency Currency
concentration concentration
Currency 30-Sop-2019  30-Sep-2018
JEY 5.62% 12.63%
usD 8.82% 34.15%

Far the Master Fund, there were no currency concentratcons, including hedgeng, greater than +/-5% of NAV at 30
Septemnber 2019 and 30 September 2018

(1] Interest Rate Risk

The Sub-Trust may invest in fixed income securities through its indirect exposure to the nvestments of the Master
Fund. Any change to the relevant mterest rates for partcular secunties may résult in the Investment Advisors baing
unable to secure samilar retums on the expry of the confracts or the sale of securities. In addition, changes to prevailing
imerest rales of changes in expectabons of future rates may resull in an increase or decrease in the value of the
securities held In general, if interest rates rise, the value of the feeed income securities will decline. A decline in interest
rates wall in ganeral have the cpposite effect

The Sub-Trust may invest in instruments in desired cumencies at fiked, floatng and zero rates of interest throwgh its
indirect exposure to the mvestment of the Master Fund.

The Sub-Trust had no signilcant direct interest rale rsk exposure at 30 September 20719 and 30 September 2018,
honwever the Sub-Trust did have indirect interest rate exposure via the Master Fund's investrment portfolio.

27

158/283



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2018

Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
Market Risk [continued)
(i) Intarest Rate Risk {continued)

The interest rate profile of the financial assets and liabilties of the Sub-Trust is as fallows:!

Al 30-Sep-2019
Mo Irtaerast
Up to1 year 1- Sysars  OQwer § yoars Baaring Total

Assels
Cash and cash aguivalents 25,328 255 - - 4.064 25,332,318
Financial assets held for trading andfor

hedging - - = 1178635412 1479855412
Receivable for investments sold = - = 563,016 563016
Oiher assels - = - 31.277.2600 3,277,780
Total Assets 25,228,255 = = 1,211,499,782 1,716828,007
Liabilities
Financial kabilties held for rading andfor

hedging - - - 1,688,723 1,688,723
Payable for investments purchased - = = 27.549 965 27 549 965
Ciher linbilties = - - S.TEa.T20 5,788,720
Total Liabilities excluding net assets

aliributable to Unitholders - - - 35,029 408 35,020,408
Al 30-Sep-2018

Non Interest
Up to1 year 1- Syears Qwar § years Eaaring Tatal

Ansels
Cash and cash equivalents 9405 852 = - a.708 9,419,580
Financial assets held for trading andior

hediging - - - 402879238  4028978,139
Olher arsgels - - - 14,463 906 14,463,598
Total Assets 9,409,852 - = 417,452,943 476,862,795
Liabllitles
Financial habilties held for trading andfor

Redgag - - - 362,16 362,016
Payable for mvesiments purchased - - - 12882011 12,882,011
Ciher linbilties = = = 5317008 537008
Tolal Liabilities excluding nit assels

aliributakde ta Unithaoldars — = - 18,501,033 18,591,033
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11 Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
{a) Market Risk [continued)
(i) Intarest Rate Risk [continued)

The interest profile of the financial assets and liabilties of the Master Fund is as follows:

Al 30-Bep-2018
Haon Interest
Uptodyear 4- Sysars  Owver S years Bearing Total

Assels

Financial assets held for irading andior

hedging 741458584 253187248 110038529 3213538 1136806283
Total Assels T41,458.584 250187218 110,006,929 AL MBEIE 106,896,269

Liabilities
Financial kabilties held for rading and’

o hedgng 114,343 057 = - - 114,343,057
Total Liabilities excluding net assets

atiributable to Unitholders 114, 33,057 - - - 114,343,057

Al M0-Bep-2018
Non Interest
Uptodyear 91- Syears  Qwer S years Bearing Total

Assels
Financial assets held for irading andior

hedging 3M.508348 35,849,580 2,998 574 7.921.608 371308108
Total Assets 324,508,048 35,849,550 2,958,574 T, %1 606 AT 02108

Liabilities
Financial abilties held for rading and’

o hedging - - - - -
Tatal Liabliities excluding net assets

atiributable to Unitholders - - - - -

{il}  Other Price Risk

Cther price rigk i the risk that the value of a inancial investrient will fluctuate as 3 result of changes n market prices,
other than those ansing from currency nisk or interest rate risk whether caused by factors specific to an individual
mvestment, &5 ssuer of any factor affecting financial investments traded in the market.

As the Sub-Trust's financial investments are carned at fair value with fair value changes recognized in the Statermnents
of Comprehensive Income, all changes in market conditions will directly affect net assets attributable Holders of
Redeamable Participating Units.

The Sub-Trust's investments in collective investment schemesimutueal funds are based upon the MAY as supplied
by the underlying funds, in accordance with the valuation policy of the applicable fund as outined in is Cffering
Memorandum, While it is expected that the assats of the mutual funds will generally be valued by an independant third
party administrater or other sesvice provider, there may be crcurnstances in which certain securties or other assets of
a mutual fund may not have a readily ascertainable market price. In such circumstances, the manager of the relevant
mutual fund may be required to value such securties ar instruments
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11 Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
fa) Market Risk [continued)
[iii} Other Price Risk {continued)

The following analysis for the Sub-Trust is presented based on the indirect exposure to the investments of the underlying

furd
Impact on NAY for a 10% Price Movement
30-Sep-19 10-Sep-13 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-18
Higher Lawesr Higher Lovwesr
Banks 4.5% (4.5%) 3.3% {3.3%)
Insurance 2.3% [2.3%:) 2.0% {2.0%%)
Hetels, Matels, Inns &

Gaming 0.4% (0. 4% 0.9% {0.5%)
Funds 0.2% 0.3%) 0.2% (0.2%)
Financials 0.5% 10.9%:) 1.0%% {1,005
Other 1.6% (1.6%:) 2.3% (2.3%)
Total Porifalio 10.0% (10.0%:) a.7% 18.7%)

{iv) Limitatiens of Sensitivity Analysis
Some of the limitations of the sensitivity analysis tables above include;

. the analysis is based on histoncal data and cannot take account of the fact that future market price movements,
correlations bebween markets and levels of market liquidity may bear no relation to histonical patterns;

. the analysis is a relabve estimate of nsk rather than a precse and accurate number,

. the analyss represents a hypothetoal suteome and is not intended to ba predictive; and

. future market conditions could vary significantly from those experienced in the past

i) Liguidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the nsk that the Sub-Trust will encounter difficulty in meeting cbligations associated with financial
labllites that are settled by delivering cash or ancther financial asset Among other things liquidity could be impaired by
an inability to access secured andfor unsecured sources of financing, an inabdity to sell assets or unforeseen oufflows
of cash or collateral or violations of counterparty of peime broker terms or covenants. This situation may arise due
o circumstances outside of the Sub-Trust's contral, such as a general market disruption or an operational problem
affectng the Sub-Trust or third parties. Also, the ability to sell assets may be irpaired if other market participants are
saeking o sell similar assets at the same time.

The Sub-Trust's financial assets and financial liabitties inciude investrments in dervative confracts traded over the
counter, which are not traded in an organized public market and which may be illiquid and in investments which may
represent a significant percentage of Ssue size. A% a result, the Sub-Trust may net be able o quidate quickly some
of thesa irvestments at an amount close to fair value in order to meet requirements, or to respond to specific events
such as detenoration in the creddworthiness of any particular issuer. The forced liquidation of investment positions may
cause financial losses

The Sub-Trust's investments include colective mvestment schemes, which may impose greater restrichons cn
redemplions than those imposed by the Sub-Trust This may include offerings less frequent redemption dates than ane
offered by the Sub-Trnust to its Unitholders.

The Sub-Trust provides for the subscription and redemption of Units and it is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk
associated wath Unithcider redempticns in accordance wath the terms in the Offering Memoandum. The Sub-Trest's
CHfering Memarandum provides for the daily subsenption and redemption of Linds,

The Sub-Trust is managed to include Bquid investments sufficient to meet normal [quidity needs athough substantal
redemptions of Units in the Sub-Trust could require the Sub-Trust to lquidate its investments more rapidly than
otherwise desirable in order to rase cash for the redemptions. These factors could adversely affect the value of the
Units redeemed and the valuation of the Umits that remain cutstanding and the liquidity of the Sub-Trust's remaining
assets if more ligued assets have been soid to meet redemptions

3
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2018

11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
(b} Liquidity Risk [continued)

The Trustee may limit or suspend redemptions in certain circumstances, including, but not imited to, when the
determination of NAV has been suspended, where the disposal of pant or all of the Sub-Trust's assels to meet
such redemption requests would, in the reascnable opinion of the Trustee, be prejudicial to Unitholders; or under
extraordinary circumstances beyond the control of the Trustee, With respect to any redemplion, having consulted with
the Irvestment Manager, the Trustee may reserve amounts from the redemption proceeds for any expenses, liabilities
of contingencies, even if such reserves are not required by IFRS

As at 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018, all Bability amounts are due within three months,

As at 30 September 201 8, gross inflows and gross.outflows fior forward foreign currency contracts were ALID 579,210,558
and AUD 580,272 663, respectively,

As at 30 September 201 8, gross inflows and gross.outflows for forward foreign currency contracts were ALID 205 085, 216
and AUD 202 509 671, respectively.

Forward foreign currency contracts are generally settled net
Financing arrangements include dervative transactions.

Expiration of terminaticn of available financing for ieveraged positions, and the reguirements to past coliateral in respesct
of changes in the fair value of leveraged exposures or changes in advance rates or other terms and conditions of the
Sub-Trust's linancing arrangements, can result in adverse effects to the Sub-Trust's access to liquidity and ability te
maintain leveraged positions, and may cause the Sub-Trust to incur matenial lbosses. The Sub-Trust may bodrow or
ulilize ather forms of leverage (on a secured and unsecured basis) for any puipose moluding, increasing investment
capacity. and covering operating expenses or for the settlement of transactions. However, there is no guarantee that
any such amangemants for ablaming leverage will be available, or, & available, will be available on terms and condibons
acceptatie to the Sub-Trust Unfavarable economic condiions also could increase funding costs, limit access to the
capital markets of result in & decion by lenders not to extend credit to the Sub-Trust.

The use of leverage also increases risk as it magnifies the effect of any velatifty in fair values on the Sub-Trust's net
assets attributable Holders of Redeemable Participating Units.

Adecling in the market value of the Sub-Trust's assets may have particular adverse consequences in nstances whene
they have borrewed money on the market value of those assets. A decrease in the market value of those assets may
result in the lender (including derivative counterparties) requinng the Sub-Trust 1o post addtional collateral or cthersise
sell assets at a time when it may not be in the Sub-Trust's best interest to do so.

{e) Credit Risk

Credit risk s the nsk that one parly 1o a fimancial mvestment will cause a financial loss for the other party By failing to
discharge an cbligation.

The Investment Advisors have adopted procedures to reduce credit risk related to its dealings with counterparties
of issuers in the Sub-Trust Belore fransacting, the Investment Advisors or their related parties evaluate bath credit-
worthiness and reputation by conducting a credit analysis of the party, thesr business and reputation. The credit nisk
of approved counterparties ar Sauars s then monitared on an ongoing basis, including penodic reviews of linancial
staternents and interim financial reports as needed.

In order to reduce exposure to credt losses, some over-the-counter dervative agreements enterad into by the Sub-Trust
permit netting of transactions ansing under such agreements, excluding those with counterparties executing only spot
foreign exchange contracs, Whike such netting nghts do not result in an offset of reported assets and labiites, they
do provide for the reduction of credit risk on favorable over-the-counter transactions with a single counterparty to the
extent of the value of unfaverable oves-the-counter transactions wath the same counterparty upon the occurrence of an
event of default or temenation event as all over-the-counter ransactions with the counterparty under such agresment
are terminated and amounts owed from and amounts payable to the counterparty ane settled on a net basis.

k1|
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2019

1.
(<)

Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
Cradit Risk [continued)

Debt securities are subject to the nsk of issuer's or a guarantor's inabdity to meet pnncipal and interest payments on
i3 obligatons and are subject 1o prce volatilly due 1o factors such as interest rate sensitivity, rmarket perception of the
creditworthiness of the isswer, and general market liquadity.

The Sub-Trust is subject 1 a number of reks relating to the insolvency, adminstration, liquidation or ather formal
protection from creditors (Insobrency™) of the Custodian or any sub-custodian / Trustee. These risks include without
lmetation:

i The logs of all cash held with the Custodian or sub-custodian / Trustee which 5 nat being treated as chent
money both at the level of the Custodian and any sub-custodians / Trustee (“chent money™)

i The loss of all cash which the Custodian or sub-custodian / Trustee has failed to treat as clent money in
accordance with procedures (f any) agreed with the Sub-Trust

i The loss of some ar all of any securities hekd on Sub-Trust which have not been properly segregated and so
identified both at the level of the Custodian and any sub-custodians [ Trustee ("Trest Assels”) or client money
held by or with the Cusiodian or sub-custodian f Trustee.

i The loss of some or all assets due to the incorrect cparation of accounts by the Custodian or sub-custodian
I Trustee or due to the process of identifying and transfemng the relevant Trust Assets andior client money
including any deduction to meet the administrative costs of an insohvency.

¥ Lesses caused by prolonged delays in receiving transfers of balances and regaining control over the relevant
assets

An insolvency could cause savere distuption to the Sub-Trust's investment activity. In some crcumstances, this could
cause the Investment Manager to temporanily suspend the calculation of the MAY and dealing in Units

Cash hedd with the Trustee may be pooled with the Trustee's cash and, in respect of that cash, the Sub-Trust may rank
a5 a general creditor of the Trustee in the event of the Trustee's insodency. Non cash held with the Custodsan are held
in segregated accounts and are not expected to be pooled and therefore should not be available to other cred#tors of the
Trustes in the event of an insolvency. The Trustee may also appoint sub-cusiodeans 1o hold cortamn assets on behatl of
the Sub-Trust. In the case of bankruptcy or insolvency of a sub-custodian, the Sub-Trust's rights with respect to those
assats may be delayed, imited or reduced

At 30 September 2015 and 30 Septembar 2018, the followeng financial assets were exposad to credit riske dermvative
financial assets, cash and cash equivalents and other recervables. The camying amaunts of financial assets best reflect
the matimum counterpay credit risk exposure at the reporting date

The maximum exposure to credit risk {excluding notional values on forward foreign cumency contracts) as at the
reparting date can be analyzed as foflows. Amounts in the table below are based on the market value

30-Sep-2019 30-Sep-2018
Instrumant Typa® AUD AUD
Cash and cash equivalents 26,332 319 9,419,560
Dise frorm brokers:

Collatens! amounts 3,830,000 748,000
Forsard forelgn curmency conbracts. 627 659 2 867 561
Receivable for invesiments sold 563,016 -
Inferest Recanable 7691 =
Recetvable for Lnits subscribed 27,635 589 13,717 596
Tatal 57,800,284 26,751,117

“Opea ande i parkss ars net inchaded in Ihis Sable since [Ny are nel papose | Srect credt risk

The Sub-Trust has the following expesure to underlying issuer credit risk

Rating 30-Sap-2019_ 30-Sep-2018
Mot Rated 100,00 10000
Total 100.00% 100.00%

a2
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2019

.

(=)

Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
Cradit Risk [continued)

The Master Fund has the following exposure to issuer credit nsk (as a percentage of total market value of the Master

Fund).

Security ratings, if any, are obtained from S&PMoody's/Fitch Investor Service.

30-Sep-7018  30-Sep-2018
% %

Rating

A 176 288
BEE B5.88 4074
BB 14,68 260
B b ] 858
Mot Rated 13.83 arxn
Total 100, 00% 100,00%

The table above mdicates the credit quality of the Master Fund's investments. Counterparties of issuers are raled
either investment grade in their own nght or if not rated then an entity in the corporate family tree has such a rating
and the Credit Risk Management and Advisory department of the Investment Manager bebeves there is strong implicit
support from the rated entity to the counterparty or issuer The Investment Advisors have a credit policy in place and
the exposure to credit risk s monitored on an ongoing basis

Acredit default swap is an agreement that involves one party making a stream of payments to another party in exchange
for the nght to recene protection on a reference secunty or oblgation. As a seller of pratection, the Sub-Trust generally
receives @ payment stream throughout the term of swap, provided that there is no credit event. In additcn, if the Sulb-
Trust sells pretection through a credit defaull swap, the Sub-Trust could suffer a loss because the value of the reference
obligation may be less than the premium payments received. Uipan the cocurrence of a specific credit event, the Sub-
Trust, a% a seller of cradit protection, may be required to take possession of the defaulted reference abgation and
pay the buyer an amount equal to the noticnal amount of the swap in a physical settled trade. The Sub-Trust may also
pay a net settiernent amount in the form of cash or securdies equal o the notienal amount of the Swap reduced by the
recovery value of the reference abligation in a cash settied trade. Recovery values are at times established through
the credit event auction process in which market patticipants are ensured that a transparent price has been set for the
defaulted security or cbligation. In addition, the Sub-Trust is entitied to a return of any assets, which have been pledged
as collateral to the counterparty. The notional amount of the Sub-Trust's credit default seaps, & any, is disclosed n
the Schedules of Investments. There were no credit default swaps as at 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018

The Sub-Trust had no counterparty or issuer credit risk greater than 5% of the net assets attributable Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units as at 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018,

The Sub-Trust measures. credit risk and expected credit osses using probability of default, exposure at default and
loss given default Management consider both historical analysis and farward looking infesmation in determining any
expected credit loss. Management consider the probabdity of default to be close to Zero as the counterparties have a
strong capacity 1o mael their contractual oblgations inthe near term. A% 2 result, no loss alowance has been recognized
based on 12-month expected credit losses as any such impairment would be wholly insignificant to the Sul-Trust

Far the Master Fund the followsng table sets forth concentrabons greater than 5% of NAV.

k]
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2019

11 Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
{ch Cradit Risk [continued)

30-Sep-213  30-Sep-2018
% of Nel Assets of

Concantration Mastar Fund
Westpac Banking Conp 810 Y
Mational Austrakia Bank Lid T.53 881
ANP Lid 6.0G —A
Australis & New Zealand Banking Group Lid 503 A
Suncorp-Metway Lid 543 Fi6
Commonwealth Bank of Australia 530 564
Macquerie Greup Lid -~ T
Insirance Australia Group Uid =i 733
Crown Resorls Lid = 518
* Aot s s Ban 5%,

{d) Additional Risks

Additional risks include, but are not limited to the following;
0] Capital Risk Management

The capital of the Sub-Trust is represented by the net assets attributable Holders of Redesmable Participating Umits.
The amount of the net assets atfributable Holders of Redeemakble Participating Uni#s can change significantly on a
daily basis as the Sub-Trust is subject to daily subscriptions and redemptions at the discretion of Unitholder The Sub-
Trust's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Sub-Trust's abiity to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for Uinitholder and benedits for other stakebalders and to maintain a strong capetal base to suppon the
development of the investment activities of the Sub-Trust.

i) Concentrateon Risk

The Sub-Trust may invest in a limited number of investments and invesiment themes. A consequence of a brnited
nurmber of mwestments is that perfformance may be more favorably or unfavorably affected by the pedformance of an
individual imiestment

i) Operational Risk

Cperational risk is the potentsl for loss caused by a deficiency in information, communications, transaction processing
and sattlerment, and accounting systems. The Sub-Trust's service providers, as shown in Mote 7, maintain contrals and
procedures for the purpose of helping to manage operational risk. Reviews of the service levels of service providers
are performed on a regular basis by the Investment Advisors. Mo assurance is given that these measures will be 100%
effectve

{i) Legal, Tax and Regulatory Risks

Legal tax and regulatory changes could occur during the duration of the Sub-Trust which may adversely affect the
Sub-Trust

With respect to tax, the Sub-Trust may be subject to taxabion on capital gains, interest and dividends in certain
Jurisdictions where the Sub-Trust invests

4
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2015

11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
{d} Additional Risks (continued)
) Legal, Tax and Regulatory Risks {continued)

The interpretaton and applicabdity of the tax law and regulabions by tax authoribies at tmes may not be clear or
consistent Tax obligations where probable and estimable are recorded as liabilibes. However, some tax obligations
are subject to uncertainty and may result in addibional tae Eabilties, serest and penalties based en future actions,
interpretations or judgments of these authonties covering current and past tax positions. Accounting standards may
ako change, creating of removing an obligation for the Sub-Trust to accrue for a potential tax hiabilty. Consequentiy, it
is possibie that certain potential tax oblsgations which currently are not probable may become so which may result in
additional tax liab#ities for the Sub-Trust in the fubure and these additional liabilities may be material. Because of the
foregoing uncertainties, the NAV may not reflect the tax liabikties ultimately borme by the Sub-Trust, including at the
tirme of any subscriptions, redemptions or exchanges of interests in the Sub-Trust, which could have an adverse impact
on investors at that tirme,

Additional details of isk not disclosed inthese financial staternents can befound in the Sub-Trust's Offering Memorandum.

12. Credit Institutions

As at 30 Septermber 2019 and 30 Seplember 2018, all cash and cash equivalents and amounts due fromito brokers
were held by the following credit institutions with a credit rating of A or higher, Credit institution ratings are cbtained from
S&P's f Moody's Investors Service / Fitch Ratings and ane unawdited

Assuls 30-Sep-2019 30-Sep-2018
% of Nat % of Net
Countarparty AUD Assots AUD Assels
Australia and Hew Fealand Banking Group Lid™! 7224 GBG 0.60 - =
Brown Brothers Harriman & Coo A, O [ 8,708 Q.00
BNP Panitas”! AT.08T .00 - -
JP Margan Chase & Co." - — 43 455 0.0
Malional Australia Bank Ligd") 18,056 482 1.51 9 366,367 2.30
Totad cash and cash equivalents 25,332,319 FRN] 9,419,560 L]
Dhid frans Birokeds:
Aurstralia and New Zealand Banking Group Lid = H40, 000 0.07 = =
Bardlays Bank PLCT - - 416,000 g0
Citibank™ 1,180,000 0.10 - -
HSEC Bank PLCT 750,000 0.08 330,000 0.08 |
Westpac Banking Conparabion™ 530,000 n.o7 - -
Total dwe from bfakers 3,630, 000 0.30 Td6,000 018
Tima Dot
Sunniincid - Cuslodan cash acount
g ginacied = csh ool Al oy Kree B ROVeROn CLITENCY CONTAOIS
iR liects ackasl smounts manang o s than 0 005%
Liabitities 30-Sep-2019 30-Sep-2018
% of Net % of Net
Counterpany AUD Assels AUD Assels
D bo brokers:
Barcloys Bank PLCT - = 1.461.223 [
HSBC Bank PLE 620,000 0.05 1576000 [EL]
Tatal due o brokers 620,000 0.05 3,037,233 0.74
TeRsiried - clsh coladernl dor iormand Roegn aumirty contrachs
35
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2019

13,

14,

15.

16

1T,

18,

Exchange Rates

The following exchange rates {against AUD) were used to convert the investrments and other assets and liabilities
denominated in curmencies othes than AUD

30-Sop-2018 10-Sop-2018

Japaness Yen (JFEY) 2851186 82184428
Linited States Dollar (LISD) 0674450 0. 723550

Soft Commissions
The Sub-Trust may pay commissians for execution anly andior for execution and investment research, The Sub-Trust

did not otherwsse enter into any third party soft commission arrangements for the years ended 30 September 2018 and
30 September 2018

Contingent Liabilities
There were no contingent liabilities as at 30 Septernber 2019 and 30 Septernber 2018

Subsequent Events

Mo events occurred subsequent o 30 September 2019 that would require adjusbment to, of disclosure in these linancial
statements

Indemnifications
The Sub-Trust may enter into contracts that contain a variety of indemnilications. The Sub-Trusl's maximum exposune

under these arrangements s unknown. However, the Sub-Trust has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these
confracts.

Approval of the Financial Statements

The Trustes has approved the financial staternants on 23 December 2019 and the financial statements may naot be
amended after issuance.

36
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 20 September 2019

% of
Heldings/ Fair Value Net
Units  Description AUD  Assets
Investment Fund*
Australian Dellar
7,338,652 Australia Enhanced Incorme Fund |l - Class 10 (Acc), AUD shares 178,027 753 98.11
Total Investment Fund 1,179,027,753 BE.11
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging Purposes
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Ameunt Loss Met
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty AUD  Assets
ougRmMe ALID 12,476 usD 8,423 HSBC Bank PLC (12 (000}
Australia & Mew Zealand
Q1AORME ALID 9,350,850 usD 341,808 Banking Group Lid {12,044) (0.00)
2102018 AUD 2,052,714 UsD 1,367,130 Standard Chartered Bank (3,965) {000
Australia & Menw Zealand
o1Mo2018 JPY B 514 TES ALD 130,566 Banking Group Lid {332) [ ]]
Total Unrealized Loss on Farward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Pertfolio Hedging
Purposes (16,357} [0.00)
Ferward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Glass Hedging Purposes
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Gain Net
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty AUD  Assets
14112018 AUD 133,107 JEY B 864 080 Standard Chartered Bank 333 000
141172018 JPY 54,281,000 AUD 735,844 Standard Chartered Bank 9914 000
13117209 uso 4,955,631 ALUD 7,306,347 Standard Chartered Bank 30,339 oo
13128 ust 7,143,685 ALD 10,472,066 LBS AG 103,994 oo
131128 uso 150,226,024 AUD 222234 800 HEBC Bank PLC 171,037 oo
Australia & New Zealand
131152018 uso 171,453,435 AUD 253 520,442 Banking Group Lid 312042 0.0z
Tetal Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes B2T 659 0.05
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Loss Net
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty AUD  Asgets
Australia & New Zealand
131172018 ALUD 1,493,554 UsD 1,012,477 Banking Group Ltd {5,393 (0.00)
1311 r2018 AUD 2820113 UsD 1,801,000 Standard Chartered Bank (d8,222) {0.00)
Australia & Mew Zealand
1411128 ALID 352,136 JEY 25,879,000 Banking Group Lid 4,786) (0.00)
141117208 JPY 2435785037 ALD 34,273,089 Westpac Corp (808,213) (0.07)
14112019 JPY 2,4568,210.416 AUD 34,554,249 Citibank NA (BOE T752) (0.07)
Total Unrealized Loss an Farward Forelgn Currency Contracts held far Class Hedging
Purposes [1,673,368) [0.14)

The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments.
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 20 September 2019

% of
Fair value Net
Total Investments ALD Assels
Total Investrment Fund 1,179,027, 753 281
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging
Purposes (18,357 (0.00)
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 627 650 005
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes (1,673,386) (014)
Other Assets and Liabilities 23 832 840 1658
Met Assets Attributable to the Holders of Redeamable Participating Units 1,201,798 629 100.00
Represents afliliated holding.
Currency Abbreviations:
ALID Australian Dollar
JPY Japanese Yen
ush United States Dallar
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. T
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2018

% of
Haldings! Fair Walue Met
Units  Description AUD  Assets
Investment Fund®
Australian Dellar
2,835,261  Australia Enhanced Incorme Fund || - Class |Q (Acg), AUD shares 400111 878 9300
Total Investment Fund 400,111,678 58,00
Ferward Foreign Currancy Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging Purposas
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Gain Net
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty AUD  Assets
03M02ME ALD 12,234 ush 8,826 Credit Suisse 36 0.00
oaMozme AD 4,753.01 UsD 3,438 086 HSBC Bank PLC 1,309 000
oanozme AID 154,277 JPY 12,620,829 HSEC Bank PLC GBY 000
Australia & Mew Zealand
0402018 AUD 484 811 usD 340 743 Banking Group Ltd 1,443 0.00
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Pertfelio Hedging
Purposes 3,565 0.00
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Loss Net
Date Currancy Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty AUD  Assets
Australia & Mew Zealand
D20 E ALID 154,358 ush 112,001 Banking Group Lid [435) {000}
Tetal Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Pertfolio Hedging
Purposes {435) (0.00)

Ferward Foreign Currency Contracts held fer Class Hedging Purposes
Unrealized % of

Maturity Amount Amount Gain Net
Date Currancy Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty AUD Assets
Australia & Mew Zealand
24M02018 ALD 116,602 JEY 9,183,571 Banking Group Lid 4,692 0.00
24NM020M8 ALID 502,015 JPY 40,976,660 Morgan Stanlay 2678 000
24102018 AUD 991,476 JPY 79,347, 7680 JPMorgan Chase & Co 24,554 oo
25102018 AUD 384 314 UsD 272,569 HSBC Bank PLC 7,249 000
25102018 ush 475,000 AUD G42 072 UBS AG 15,680 000
25102018 ush 068 483 AUD 1,274,305 Royal Bank of Canada 5452 000
Australia & Menw Zealand
25M02ME ush 5,280,107 AUD 7,256,738 Banking Group Lid 53,413 0o
25102018 ush 38,323 352 AUD 53,000,042 Barclays Bank PLC 1,330,040 033
2aM0208 usD S2,188.841 ALID 70,678 1682 HSBC Bank PLC 1411228 0.35
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 2,863,996 0.70
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Loss Net
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty AUD  Asgets
2410218 ALID 25824 JPY 18,383,376 Royal Bank of Canada 1,316) (0.00)
2510208 AUD 537,724 UsD 352,000 Royal Bank of Canada (3,962) (0.00)
Australia & Mew Zealand
24M02018 JPY 42,572,000 AUD 525 211 Banking Group Ltd {6,434) (0.00)
24102018 JPY 217 573,047 AUD 2,858 381 HSBC Bank PLC (7, 062) {0.00)
24M0R2ME JPY 2,0854,923137 ALD 25,267 962 JPMorgan Chase & Co (105,061) (0.03)
24102018 JPY 2065484011 ALD 25,276,822 Royal Bank of Scotland PLC (107,087) (0.03)
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. ]
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2018

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging Purposes [continued)

Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Loss Net
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty AUD Assels
25M0E21E sD 7,160,028 ALUD 10,054, 762 Morgan Stanley {180 655) (0. 0u4)
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Curréncy Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes [351,581) (010
% of
Fair Value Net
Total Investments ALUD Assels
Total Irnvestment Fund 400,111,678 83.00
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging
Purposes 315685 000
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Porifolio Hedging
Purposes ) ) ) (425) (0.00)
Total Unrealized Gain on Foreard Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 2,863 508 0.7
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposas (361,581) {0.10)
Cther Assets and Liabilities 5684 538 1.40
Het Assets Attributable to the Holders of Redeemablbe Participating Units 408,271,762 100.00
Represents affilated halding.
I':urranqr Abbreviations:
ALD Australian Daltar
JPY Japanesa Yen
UsD  United States Dollar
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. ]
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2020
1,462,424,763.00 107,181,110,880
42,837,055.20 3,139,527,776
56,703,897.20 6,184,127,029
669,417,066.44 49,061,576,799
4,487,416,101
404,095,283.30 44,070,631,597
10,539,919.49
76,732,483.83
492,167.19
39,316,191.90
5.38 587
8.72 639
9,118
10.28 1,121
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2020
187,117,965.90 204
5,051,655 37.04
2015 37,117,968.52
2016 37,117,968.52
2017 37,117,968.52
2017 11 187,117,965.90
2018 187,117,965.90
2019 187,117,965.90
2020 187,117,965.90

¢
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5,086,799,105.27
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131

23 103

2020 31
109.06
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UFJ S.A.
2018 12 31
2018 2017
31.1,31.3 3,714,129,527 405,062,966  2,294,618,594 250,251,104
3,15,31.1,31.3 3,533,550,709 385,369,040  4,079,919,230 444,955,991
2,311,150,709 252,054,096  3,137,919,230 342,221,471
1,222,400,000 133,314,944 942,000,000 102,734,520
31.1,31.3 372,880 40,666 265,472 28,952
4,15,31.1,31.3 2,834 309 14,984 1,634
5 3,783,033 412,578 4,125,181 449,892
257 28 180 20
6,15 36,979,553 4,032,990 24,028,149 2,620,510
7 7,288,818,793 794,918,578  6,402,971,790 698,308,103
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UFJ S.A.
2018 12 31
2018 2017

15,31.1 1,794,570,343 195,715,842  2,103,521,459 229,410,050
1,565,940,343 170,781,454  2,103,521,459 229,410,050
228,630,000 24,934,388 0 0
8,15,31.1 5,073,055,610 553,267,445 3,913,497,702 426,806,059
5,071,655,610 553,114,761  3,913,497,702 426,806,059
1,400,000 152,684 0 0
9 2,206,816 240,675 1,867,543 203,674
10,15 15,704,349 1,712,716 18,519,456 2,019,732
18,148,556 1,979,282 20,211,255 2,204,239
11 16,536,604 1,803,482 18,691,834 2,038,531
12 1,611,952 175,799 1,519,421 165,708
13 187,117,966 20,407,085 187,117,966 20,407,085
14 158,191,749 17,252,392 124,372,931 13,564,112
14 3,259 355 4,686 511
39,820,145 4,342,785 33,858,792 3,692,640
16 7,288,818,793 794,918,578  6,402,971,790 698,308,103
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UFJ S.A.
2018 12 31
2018 2017
17,31.1 541,339 59,038 578,509 63,092
541,339 59,038 578,509 63,092

20 92,427,954,484 10,080,192,716 81,804,130,253 8,921,558,445
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UFJ S.A.
2018 12 31

2018 2017
81,824,073 8,923,733 54,056,442 5,895,396
5,448,991 594,267 2,221,669 242,295
31,789,988 3,467,016 27,650,438 3,015,557
(40,218,579)  (4,386,238)  (16,495,414)  (1,798,990)
(12,070,732)  (1,316,434)  (9,439,648)  (1,029,488)
(392,542) (42,811) (254,716) (27,779)
92 10 750,200 81,817
92 10 750,200 81,817
21 115,660,720 12,613,958 106,256,230 11,588,304
56,930,365)  (6,208,826)  (52,040,385)  (5,675,524)
4,336,416 472,930 6,388,924 696,776
22 4,322,262 471,386 2,484,563 270,966
(51,755,210)  (5,644,423)  (51,064,124)  (5,569,053)
24,25  (20,839,657)  (2,272,773)  (20,806,005)  (2,269,103)
(16,818,051)  (1,834,177)  (16,838,247)  (1,836,379)
(2,632,035) (287,050)  (2,420,642) (263,995)
(1,596,915) (174,160)  (1,541,426) (168,108)
26,30  (30,915,553)  (3,371,650)  (30,258,119)  (3,299,950)
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(1,767,494) (192,763)  (2.,589,398) (282, 400)
23 (605,778) (66,066) (507,993) (55,402)
11,27.1  (13,169,369)  (1,436,251)  (11,831,429)  (1,290,336)

41,696,768 4,547,450 35,407,616 3,861,555
27.2  (1,876,623) (204, 665) (1,548,824) (168,915)
39,820,145 4,342,785 33,858,792 3,692,640
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UFJ S.A.

2018 12 31

1.1.
UFJ S.A.
1974 11
1996

2005 10

2006

2007
70 30

2008 28 49,080
1,817,968.52 37,117,968.52
92.25
63.72 28.53
2014
12-13
1993
907648
2016 1
UFJ S.A.
2017 31 UFJ
S.A. 100

1.2.
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2.5.

2.6.

2017

2018
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1997 12 16
1.25
2018 12 31 2017

2.7.

2.5

2.8.

10

2.9.

2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

2.13.

2.14.
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2018 2017

543,400,000 135,000,000

679,000,000 807,000,000

1,222,400,000 942,000,000

2,834 2017 14,984

3,824,149 115,904  (660,418)  (183,596) 3,096,039 2,325,231 770,808
1,336,134 111,903  (644,414)  (64,147) 739,476 574,142 165,334
2,488,015 4,001 (16,004)  (119,449) 2,356,563 1,751,089 605,474

18,907,410 1,509,749 (419,631)  (814,339) 19,183,189 16,170,964 3,012,225
16,961,971 1,509,749 (419,631)  (814,339) 17,237,750 14,225,525 3,012,225

1,945,439 0 0 0 1,945,439 1,945,439 0
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2018 12 31
4,008,887,622

2018 2017
0 1,258,254
15,591,714 4,666,886
921,843 283,041
2,124,415 1,969,915
9,573,008 8,936,086
5,836,414 3,813,147
481,264 644,074
765 134,936
62,649 690,238
483,831 319,145
162,315 671,075
664,574 393,820
1,076,761 247,532
36,979,553 24,028,149

5,393,986,107

2018 12 31 1,400,000
2018 2017
618,902 841,978
1,587,914 1,025,565
2,206,816 1,867,543
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2018 12 31

12

13
2018 12 31
49,080

2.2

2018 12 31
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2018 2017
6,908,708 6,607,907
3,224,725 5,653,314
3,347,939 885,708

308,226 524,416
1,717,819 4,680,727
122,543 142,861
74,389 24,523
15,704,349 18,519,456
1987 16
1983 23

2018 2017
1,611,952 1,519,421
1,611,952 1,519,421

5,002,575
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14
2018 3,711,797 120,661,134 4,686
2017 12 31 0 0 33,858,792
0 0 (41,401)
2018 0 8,700,000 (8,700,000)
2012 0 (3,304,122) 3,304,122
0 26,730,000 (26,730,000)
1,692,940 0 (1,692,940)
2018 12 31 5,404,737 152,787,012 3,259
10
10
2015 11 19 Fort. N° 47bis
2014 2015
2014 2015
22,444,927 2017 17,049,049
2018 23 8,700,000 2018
2012 3,304,122
2018 12 31
2018
2013 3,101,000
2014 -2015 3,019,136
2016 3,348,440
2017 4,276,351
2018 8,700,000
2018 12 31 22,444,927
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2018 12 31

2018 12 31

575 2013

2018 12 31

16
2018 12 31
2,973,768,077

17

18
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2018 2017
3,314,382,591 3,789,891,462
24,033,836 10,791,736
3,338,416,427 3,800,683,198
2018 2017
1,787,952,744 2,098,463,451
1,001,503,360 659,726,748
5,654,686 4,972,871
2,795,110,790 2,763,163,070
24
2013 26
3,450,572,108
2018

3,313,256,918
15,595,810
121,719,380

3,450,572,108

3,951,265,679

2018

541,339

2017

578,509

2017



19

20

21

2018 12 31

2017 12 31
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2018 2017
6,499,120 521,191

2018 2017
21,506,351 19,403,089
80,663,753 74,948,090
11,772,959 10,347,746
921,843 1,003,474
795,814 553,831
115,660,720 106,256,230
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22
2018 2017
2013 2014 2015 2017 2,530,324 0
1,151,445 226,068
414,867 568,181
70,598 67,500
2012 -2014 0 1,441,990
155,028 180,824
4,322,262 2,484,563
23
2018 2017
345,919 346,695
220,859 137,159
7,836 13,741
31,164 10,398
605,778 507,993
24
2018 2017
29 30
71 66
67 74
167 170
25
2018 2017
5,084,843 5,832,575
875,409 871,739
4,209,434 4,960,836
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
26
2018 2017
1,372,967 1,165,998

1,264,913 1,041,720
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2,847,608 1,442,936
3,550,904 4,376,343
1,141,991 1,109,879
4,997,353 5,192,885
2,847,497 3,412,539
11,679,286 11,204,978
363,250 384,358
203,378 226,957
646,406 699,526
30,915,553 30,258,119
2018
27
27.1.
2018 2017
9,760,432 8,893,072
3,408,937 2,938,357
13,169,369 11,831,429
27.2.
2018 2017
1,819,754 1,483,823
56,869 65,001
1,876,623 1,548,824
28
2018 12 31
100
33 100-
8212
100
29
2014 59
2014 49 2015 12 18

100,000 20,000
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2024
179 (1)
0.8
2016
0.8
0.8
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12

2024
2015
2018
2018 180 (1)
1,686,439 1,988,649
2018 2017
329,206 265,049
139,547 157,633
39,220 41,309
0 26,272

507,973 490,263
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a. 2018 2018 12 31
b.
C.
31
31.1.
2018 12 31
3,714,129,527 0 0 0 3,714,129,527
2,854,550,709 679,000,000 0 0 3,533,550,709
372,880 0 0 0 372,880
0 0 0 2,834 2,834
6,569,053,116 679,000,000 0 2,834  7,248,055,950
1,794,570,343 0 0 0 1,794,570,343
5,073,055,610 0 0 0 5,073,055,610
6,867,625,953 0 0 0 6,867,625,953
541,339 0 0 0 541,339
541,339 0 0 0 541,339
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2017 12 31

2,294,618,594 0 0 2,294,618,59%
3,272,919,230 807,000,000 4,079,919,230
265,472 0 0 265,472

0 0 14,984 14,984
5,567,803,296 807,000,000 14,984  6,374,818,280
2,103,521,459 0 0 2,103,521,459
3,913,497,702 0 0 3,913,497,702
6,017,019,161 0 0 6,017,019,161
578,509 0 0 578,509
578,509 0 0 578,509
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3,271,219,543 3,321,504 0 3,274,541,047 77,666,609

1,394,522,057 0 1,394,522,057 2,067,411

4,665,741,600 3,321,504 0 4,669,063,104 79,734,020

3,303,598,230 3,270,027 0 3,306,868,257 76,992,277

854,553,985 0 0 854,553,985 2,708,455

4,158,152,215 3,270,027 0 4,161,422,242 79,700,732
2018 12 31 2018 12 31
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3,257,117,915 0 0 3,257,117,915 24,750,086

812,986,742 0 0 812,986,742 2,151,255

4,070,104,657 0 0 4,070,104,657 26,901,341

3,057,118,085 0 0 3,057,118,085 22,397,245

2,201,155,324 0 0 2,201,155,324 8,610,571

5,258,273,409 0 0 5,258,273,409 31,007,816
2017 12 31 2017 12 31
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31.3.

2018 12 31

2018

3,714,129,527
3,714,129,527

3,533,550,709
180,725,105
722,872,089
2,605,130,138

2017

2,294,618,594
2,294,618,594

4,079,919,230

470,317,266
1,493,150, 265
2,104,162,750

5,033,138 9,871,366
19,790,239 2,417,583
372,880 265,472
50,865 4,473
318,231 39,775

4 221,074

3,780 150
2,834 14,984

0 12,008

2,834 2,976

7,248,055,950

6,374,818,280
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31.4.
2018 12 31
2018 2018
3,160,915,130 75,043,013
113,600,617 2,623,478
25,301 118
1,394,522,057 2,067,411
4,669,063,105 79,734,020
2017 12 31
2017 2017
1,151,209, 346 8,548,868
2,105,636,836 16,199,995
271,733 1,223
812,986,742 2,151,255

4,070,104,657 26,901,341
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4

BALANCE SHEET
Decamber 31, 2018
{in USD)
ASSETS
Hotes 2018 2017
Cash, balances with central banks
and post office banks A, A 3.T14.129.527 2,204 618,594
Loans and advances to credit institutions 3,15 3.4, 3.3 3.533.550.709 4.079.919.230
a) repayable on demand 2.311.150.709 3.137.919.230
b) other loans and advances 1,222 400.000 942,000,000
Loans and advances 1o Customens 31.1., 3.3, aT2.880 265472
Shares and other variable-yleld securities 4,15, 31.1,, 31.3, 2834 14.984
Fixed Assets 5 3.783.033 4125181
Other assets 257 180
Prepayments and accrued income 6, 15 36.979.553 24,028,149
TOTAL ASSETS 7 7.288.818.793 “6.402.971.700

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.

-T-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2018
{in USD)
- eontinued -

LIABILITIES

Notes 2018 2017
Amounts owed to credit institutions 15 M. 1.794.570.343 2.103.521.459
a) repayable on demand 1.565.940.343 2.103.521.459
b) with agreed maturity dates 228.630.000 0
Amounts owed to customers 8,15, 31.1. 5.073.055.610 3.913.497.702
a) repayable on demand 5.071.655.610 3.913.497 702
b} with agreed malurity dataes 1.400.000 o
Other liabilities ] 2,206.816 1.B67.543
Accruals and deferred incoma 10, 15 15.704.349 18.519.456
Provisions 18.148.556 20.211.255
a) provisions for taxaton 11" 16.536.604 168.691.834
b) ather provisions 12 1.611.952 1.519.421
Subscribed capital 13 1B7.117.966 187.117.966
Reserves 14 158.191.749 124.372.931
Result brought forward 14 3.250 4,686
Profit for the financial year 39.820.145 33.858.792
TOTAL LIABILITIES 16 7.288.818.793 B.AD2.971.790

The accompanying noles ferm an integral part of the annual accounts.

“H-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKIMNG (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4.
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
December 31, 2018

{in USD)
Notes 2018 T
Contingent labilitles 17, 31.1. 541.339 576.508
of which:
guarantees and assets pledged as
collateral sacurity 241,338 578.500
Fiduciary operations 20 92.427.954 484 B1,804.130.253

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts,
-

202/283



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Year ended Decamber 31, 2018

{in USD)
Notes anig 017
Interest receivable and similar income 81.624.073 54.056.442
of which :
- Megative interast received on deposits 544890 2221669
- Interest Gain from foreign currency swap 31.7089.988 27650438
Interest payable and similar charges [40.218.579) [16.495.414)
wiich
MNegative interest paid on loans and advances (12.070.732) (9.438.648)
Interest Loss from foresgn curmency swap (3892.542) (254,716}
Income from securities 42 TE0.200
Income from shares and other variable yield secwrities a2 750.200
Commission receivable Fal 115.660.720 106.256.230
Commission payable (56.930.365) (52.040.385)
Met profit on financial operations 4.338.416 £.388.924
Other operating income 22 4.322.262 2.484.563
General administrative expenses (51.755.210) (51.064.124)
a)} stalf costs 24, 25 (20.830.657) [ 20.806.005)
of which:
= wages and salahes (16.818.0581) (16.838.247)
- social security costs (2 632.035) (2.420.642)
of which;
- social securnity costs relating to pensians (1.596.915) (1.541.426)
b) other administrative expenses 26, 30 {30.915.553) (30,258,119)
Value adjustments in respect of tangible (1.767.494) (2.589.398)
and intangible assets
Other operating charges 23 (605.778) {507.993)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 11, 27.4. (13.169.369) (11.831.429)
Profit on ordinary activities after tax 41.696.768 35.407 616
Other taxes not shown under the preceding items 27.2, (1.876.623) (1.548.824)
Profit for the financial year 38.820.145 33.856.T82

The accompanying notes form an mbegral part of the annual accounts.

=11 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018

MOTE 1 - GENERAL

1.1,

Corporate matters

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A. (the "Bank”) was incorporated in
Luxembourg on April 11, 1974 as a socislé anonyme.

On April 1, 1996, the Parent Bank, The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd., mearged with The Mitsubishi Bank, Limited to foarm
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi Ltd., and Bank of Tokyo (Luxembourg) S.A. changed its name to Bank of Tokyo-
Mitsubishi {Luxembourg) S.A..

On October 1, 2005, the indirect sharshalder, Mitsubishi Tokyo Financial Group, Inc. (MTFG) merged with UFJ
Haoldings, Inc. (LIFJ) and formed a new financial group, Mitsubishi UF. Financial Group (MUFG),

On January 1, 2006, the Pasent Bank, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, Ltd. merged with UFJ Bank Limited o
form The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubighi LIFJ Lid,, and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi (Luxembourg) S.A. changed its
nama to Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ (Luxembourg) S.A.,

O Agiril 2, 2007, the Bank became a jointty capitalized subsidiary of Mitsubishi UF.J Trust and Banking
Corporation by 70% and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Lid. by 30%, which are under the same holding
company Mitsubishi UFJ Finansial Group (MUFG). Consequently, Bank of Tokyo-Milsubishi LFJ
(Luxembeurg) 5.4, changed its name to MITSUBISHI UFJ Global Custody 5.4, (MUGC),

On April 28, 2008, MITSUBISHI UF ) Global Custedy S.A., has issued 49.080 new shares and the capital af the
Bank has been increased by USD 1.817.968.52. The total subscribed share capital is currently sa1 at

USD 37.117.968,52. The two major sharehalders of the Bank hald 92, 25% of the capital, Milsubishi UF.J Trust
and Banking Corporation by 63,72% and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd. by 28 53%.

On August 7, 2014, MITSUBISHI UFJ Global Custody 5_A. has established an extemnal branch located at

Ormonde House, 12-13 lower Lesson Street, Dublin 2, Irefand. Mitsubishi UFJ Global Custody 5.4, Dublin
Branch is registened as credit institution pursuant to UE Regulation, 1993, under the number 907648,
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
- continued -

On May 1, 2016, MITSUBISHI UFJ Global Custody 5.4, has changed its name to MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR
SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4, (MIBL).

On May 31, 2017, Mitsubishi UF.J Trust and Banking Corporation obtained 100% of the voling shares af Mitsubishi UFJ
Invastor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) S.A..

The members of the Beard of Directors are Senior Executives of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation Group
and Independant Direclors. The business palicy and valuation principles, unless prescrbed by the legal requiremeants

@xghng in Luxembourg, are determingd and moniloned by the Board of Directors in accordance with those applied in
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group.

Nature of business
The object of the Bank is the undertaking for its own account, as well as for the accownt of third parties esthar within ar

outside the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg, of any banking or financial operations, as well as all other operations,
whather industrial or commercial or in real estate, which directly or indirectly relate to the main object descrbed above.

More specifically, the Bank concentrates its activitios on investment management Services.

A significant volume of the Bank's transactions is concluded directly or indirectly with companies of Mitsubishi UFJ

Financial Group.

Annual accounts

The Bank prepares its annual accounts in US Dollars {ISD), the currency In which the capdal is expressed. The Bank's
accounting year coincides with the calendar year.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Bank prepares its annual accounts under the historical cost principle in accordance with the laws and regulations
in force in the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg and on the basis of accounting principles generally accepbed in the banking
sector in tha Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg.

=14 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
= conlinued -

In observing these, the following significant accownting policies are applied.

Aszats and liabiities are stated in the balance sheat on the date the amounts concermed becoma clearad funds, that is,
on their date of effective transfor,

Foreign curmancies

Thea Bank maintains a multi-cumency accounting system which records all transactions in the curmency or curmencies of
the transaction, on the day on which the contract is conduded.

Assets and liabilities are converted into USD at the spot exchange rates applicable at the balance sheet date. Both
realised and unrealised profits and losses arising on revaluation are accounted for in the profit and loss account for the
year, excepd for those resulting from ilems specfically covered by a forward foreign exchange contract (swap and
hedging forward foreign exchange contract) which are recorded al hsioncal exchange rates,

Revenues and expenses in foreign currencies are translated into USD daily at the prevailing exchange rates.

At the year-and, all unsatiled forevard transactions are translated into USD at the forward rate prevailing on the Balance
Sheet date for the remaining maturilies.

Resulls on unsettied forward transactons linked 1o spot Iransactions and on swap transactions are accruad at the

balance shieet date. In case of unrealised resulls on position covered by foreign exchange swap, these are neutralized

at year end.

Financial inslrumants darmalives

The Bark's commitments deriving from the derivatives financial instruments such as intenest rate swaps, forward rafe
agreements, financial futures and ophons are recorded an the iransaction date amang the off Balance sheet itarms.

- 18-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
- continued -

At the year-end, where necessary, a provision is set up in respect of individual unrealised lesses resulting from the
revaluation of the Bank's commitments at market value. There is no provision for unrealized losses on forward deals
rcorded for the year 2018 (2017 USD nil).

N provision i% set up in those cases where a financial instrumeant clearly covers an assat or a liability and sconamic
unity is established or where a financial instrement is hedged by a reverse transaciion so that no open position exisis.

Itis the Bank's policy to establish specific value adjustments in respect of doubtiul and irecoverable debts, as deemed
appropriata by the Board of Directors.

Value adjusimaents, if any, are deducted from the assats to which they relate,

The value adjustments for possible losses on lbans and advances, if any, are deducted from the assets to which they
relate.

In accordance with the Luxembourg tax legislation, the Bank can establish a lemp-sum provigion for fsk exposures, as
defined in the legislation goveming prudential supenvision of banks, The purposs of the provision is 1o take account of
risks which are likely to crystallise but which have not yet been identified as at the date of preparation of the annual
aceounts,

Pursuant to the Instrections issuad by the Direclew des Confributions on December 16, 1897, this provision should be
made before taxation and should not exceed 1,25% of the Bank's risk exposuras,

The Bank has not constituted any provision as of Decamber 31, 2018 (2017: USD 0).
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
- continued -

Translerable securilies

Transferable secunties are recorded initially at their purchasa price. The average cost method ks used for initial
recagnition. Value adjustments, calculated as described in note 2.5. or ansing from a diminution of value, are deducted

from the account balance,

Tangible and intangitle assets ane valued ol purchase price. The value of langible and intangible fxed assots with
limsted useful economéc lives is reduced by valuve adjustments calculated to wrile off the value of such assets
systematically over their useful economic lives as follows:

= Hardware equipment: 4 years;
« Software: 4 years and 5 years;

+« Ofher intangible assats: 5 years;
+  Other tangible assels: 10 years,

At the Balance Sheet date, shares in affilated undertakings held as financial fixed assets are stated at the lower of cost

or market valua.

Taxes

Taxes ara accounted for on an accrnuals basis in the accounts of the year to which thay relate.

Prapayment and accrued incoms

This asset item includes expenditure incurred during the financial year but redating to a subsequent financial year.

-§7 -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
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Ancruals and deferred ncome

This liability item includes income received during the financial year but relating to a subsequent financial year.

Provisions

Provisions are intemded to cover losses or debts the nature of which is cleary defined and which, at the date of the
balance shaet are aither likely to be incurred or cartain to be incurred but uncerain & 1o Iher aMount of as 16 the date
an which they will arise.

Reven "

The Bank’s main streams of revenue are comprised of interests and commissions income. The Bank eams fee and
commission income from a wide range of senices it provides to its customers,

Revenue is generally recognized when the related services are perormed of recognized over the period that the
sarvices ana provided.

HOTE 3 - LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Loans and advances 1o cledil nstitutions athes than those repayable on demand may be analysed according to their
remaining maturity as follows:

2018 2017

uso uso

Mot more than three months 343,400,000 135, 000.000
More than three months but less than one year 679,000,000 BOT.000.000
1.222.400.000 842 .000.000

NOTE 4 - SHARES AND OTHER VARIABLE YIELD SECURITIES

Transferable securities shown under the itlem “Shargs and ather variable yield securities” consist entirely of unlisted
securities for USD 2834 (2017 14.084),

= 18-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
= continwed -

NOTE 6 - PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME

The Bank's prepayments and accrued income may be analysed as follows:

2018 2017

usD uso

Advance paid 10 IRS, US Tax authoritias [¥] 1.250.254
Accrpid inlerest income 15.581.714 4 666 886
Commission from the Management Company 921.843 283.041
Commission on fiduciary operations 2124415 1.968.915
Commission on global custody 9,573,008 B.036.086
Commission an investment funds 5.836.414 3813147
Prepaid general expenses 481 264 644.074
Prepaid income taxes Té5 1349386
VAT recovarable 62649 G00.238
Othar accrued income 483.831 319145
v Cornmissions 162.315 BT1.075
Cher prepayments 664.574 383820
Accrued Inlerest inCOMe On SWaps 1.076.761 247 532
36970553 24028149

NOTE T - FOREIGN CURRENCY ASSETS

At December 31, 2018, the aggregate amount of the Bank's assels dencminated in foreign currencies,

translated into USD, is USD 5.393.986 107 (2017: USD 4.008 887 622).

MNOTE 8 - AMOUNTS OWED TO CUSTOMERS

As at December 31, 2018, debts other than those repayable on demand with a residual maturity less than 1
manth amounted to USD 1.400.000.

=20 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING {LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Dacember 31, 2018

NOTE 9 - OTHER LIABILITIES

The Bank’s other liabilities may be analysed as follows:

018 2017
uso uso
Preferantial creditors 518.902 #41.978
Sundry creditors 1.587.914 1.025.565
2.206.816 1.867.543
NOTE 10 - ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME
The: Bank's accruals and deferred income may be analysed as follows:
2ME 2017
usD usoD
Accrued commission 6.908.7048 6.607.907
Accrued general expenses 3224725 5.653.314
Accruad interest expenses 3.347.939 BB5.708
Deferrad income related to custody fees 08226 524,416
Meubralization of foreign exchange results on position coverad 1.717.819 4680, 727
by fargign exchange swap (note 2.2.)
Other accrued axpenses 122543 142,561
Other suspense receipts [*) 74,389 24.523
15.704.349 18,519,456

{*) Transitory account for suspense receipts payable after the 31/12/2018 to the relative beneficiary.

=21 =
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MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
= ontinwed =

NOTE 11 - TAXATION - EXCHANGE DIFFERENCE: DEFERRED TAXATION

Under Luxembouwrg fiscal regulations, the Bank's fiscal Balance Sheet and i3 results of operations ane required
to be axpressed in Euro. The eamings of the Bank as determined for iscal purposes can differ substantially
from eamings reported for accounting purposes as a result of unrealised profits or losses on the ranslation of
thex Bank's equity into Euro equivalents for fiscal purposes.

In accordance with the Law of July 16, 1987 (as modified), which allows the fiscal neutralisation of translation
gaing on exchange on the imwastment of equity in banks, unrealised gains which may be cawsed by a rise in the
USD against the Euro can, under nomeal circumstances, be neutralised to the extent of the amount that
exceeds the unrealised translation losses previously carmed Tonward.

In accondance with the Law of July 23, 1883, howeaver, which allows the fiscal neutralisation of translation gains
on exchange on the investiment of equity in banks, future unrealised gains which may be caused by a rise in the
US dollar against the Euro can, under narmal circumstances, only ba neutralisad to the exent of the amoant

that exceeds the unrealised translation losses previously carried forward.

Az at Dacarmber 31, 2018, there are no deferred tax liabilities.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decembear 31, 2018
- continued -

MOTE 12 - OTHER PROVISIONS

The Bank's other provisions ame made of provision for remunaration.

2018 2017

uso usD

Provigion for remuneration 1,611,952 1519421
__ 1611852 1519.421

NOTE 13 - SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2018, the Bank's subscribed and fully paid up capital amounts to USD 187.117.966 for
5.002 575 shares of Class A and 49,080 shares of Class B.

NOTE 14 - MOVEMENTS IN RESERVES AND RESULT BROUGHT FORWARD

Legal Other Result brought

reserve reserves forward

uso uso uso

Balance at January 1, 2018 3.711.797 120.661.134 4 686

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2017 o o 33.858.702

Appropriation of profit

- Dividends paid to shareholders Q [ {41.401)

- Transfer to reserves for Net Worth Tax 2018 Q 8.700.000 (8.700.000)
- Transfer from Reserva for Net Worth Tax

2012 0 (3.304.122) 3.304.122

- Alocation (o Free resere 4] 26.730.000 (26.730.000)

- Allscation to Legal reserve 1.692.940 0 (1.682.940)

Balance at December 31, 2018 5.404.737 152,787 012 3.259

-23-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
= continued -

Under Luxembouwrg law, the Bank must approprate 1o a legal reserve an amount equivalent 1o at least 5% of the
annual net profit until such reserve is equal to 10% of the share capital. This appropriaticn is made in the
Tollowing year. Distribution of the legal reserse is restricted. This requirement is satisfied as the Bank has
reachad 10% of the issued subscribad capital,

Based on the Luxembourg tax law, the Bank has elected to get a tax credit for all or part of the net worth tax due
for that year. This tax cfedil is hewever, limited to the amount of the corporate income Eax due for the previous
year before the imputation of any tax credits. In order o profit from this credit, the Bank must commit itsell 1o
post before the and of the subsequent year an amount egqual to five times the nat worth tax credit 1o a special
resarve, which has o be mainlained for a period of five years.

The Circular |. Fort. N 47bis ssued by the Luxembourg Tax Authorities on November 19, 2015, provides for a
dedicated rule allowing the taxpayer to create only one net wealth tax reserve to fully benefit from the Net
Wealth Tax reduction for both 2014 and 2015. This reserve should cormespond Lo five times the amount of the
highest reduction available for 2014 and 2015 (transitional measure). The special reserve for el worh tax is
included in the: Bank's other reserve for a total amount of USD 22.444.927 (2017: USD 17.049.049 ),

Ag regobied in the Annual General Meating dated March 23, 2018, the Bank has allocated an amount of
USD 8.700.000 to special reserve for Net Worth Tax 2018 and reversed the available spacial resenve for Net

Worth Tax constituted in 2012 which amounted to USD 3,304,122,

The accumulated balance of special reserve for Net Worh Taxes states as follows as at December 31, 2018.

2018

Resarve for Nat

Waorth Tax

Years uso
2013 3101000
2014 - 2015 3019136
2016 3348440
207 4.276.351
2ma 8.700.000
Balance at Decamber 31, 2018 22444927
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MITSUBISHI UFJ) INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
- continued -

MOTE 15 - RELATED PARTY BALANCES

As at Decamber 31, 2018, the following balances with related panies ane outstanding:

ASSETS
2018 2017
UsD uspD
Loans and advances to credit institutions 3.314.382.50 3,789.891.462
Prepaymants and accreed income 24.033.835 10.791.736
3338 416427 3.800.683.198
LIABILITIES
2018 017
uso uso
Amounis owed to credil insbilulions 1.787.952.744 2,008 463 451
Amounts owed to cuslomerns 1.001,503.360 6450, T26.748
Accruals and delerrod incoma 5,654 686 4972871
2.795.110.780 2763 163,070

The Bank has not entered into any significant transactions with related parties as defined in International
Accounting Standards 24 “Related Party Disclosures”™ which were not made on terms equivalent to those that
pravail in amn's length transactions as of December 31, 2018 and for the year then ended.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
- continued -

Al the request of the Bank, the CSSF has granted a total exemplion for the exposurnes lowards the group
{Mitsubishi UF.J Financial Group) in the calculation of large exposure limits, in accordance with the Regulation
{EU) Mo 5752013 of June 26, 2013 (Part IV).

As al Dacember 31, 2018, the amount towards the group falling under this exemplion amounts to
USD 3.450.572.108 and can be analysed as follows:

2018

uso

Loans and advances to credit institutions 3313256918
Prepayments and accrued income 15.585.810
Forgign exchange transactions (Market Risk method) 121.719.380
3450572108

MNOTE 16 - FOREIGN CURRENCY LIABILITIES
At December 31, 2018, the aggregate amounts of liabilities denominated in foraign currencies translated into

USDis USD 3.951.265.679 (2017. USD 2.973.768.077 ).

NOTE 17 - COMTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Bank's contingent Eabiliies may be analysed as follows:

2018 2017
uso uso
Counter-guarantees issued 541.339 578,500

Ag al the year-end, thene wane no relatad party balances.

T
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Dacember 31, 2018
- conlinued -

NOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS

The Bank has entered into cerain commitments which are not disclosed neither in the Balance Sheet nor in the
Off Balance Sheet llems, bul which ane significant for the purposes of assessing the financal sifuation of the

Bank, Details of such commitmants ane as follows:

2018 2017
uso uso
Commitments in respect of fived rental payments contracted on
buildings 6.499.120 521181

As at the year-gnd, there are no related party balances.
NOTE 19 - OPERATIONS LINKED TO CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATES, INTEREST RATES AND OTHER MARKET
RATES
The following types of forward ransactions are outstanding as at December 31, 2018 and 2017
ticas li ha
- Forward exchange transactions {swaps, outrights).
Oparations linked to the foreign currency exchangs rates are made to a large extent for the purposes of
cowvaring the exsting positions.
NOTE 20 - INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND UNDERWRITING FUNCTIONS

Managemant and agency sarvices provided by the Bank includa:

Custody and administration of transferable securities;
Fiduciary represantations;

- Agency functions;
= Portfolio management and adviceg,

=27 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018

- conbinued =
NOTE 21 - COMMISSIONS RECEIVABLE

2018 2017

usD uso

Fees on Imvestmeant Funds 21,506,351 19.403.083

Feas on Globhal custody from Institutional customers 80.663.753 74948090

Fees on Fiduciary transactions 11.772.950 10,347 746

Fees on Services lo Management Company 521,843 1.003.474

Other fees and commissions T95.814 553.831
115.660.720 106256, 230

Commissions receivable congist of the following:

Fees on Invesiment Funds consist of fees and commissions charged to Invesiment Funds for cusiody services,
central administration, depasitary and other services. The fees are caloulated on the basis of the value af net
assats of the funds under administration.

Fets on global custody from Institutional customers consist of fees and commissions charged to institutional
cuglomers for gichal cusiody serices including secuniliss rade management, settlemant, corporate actions,
income collection and proxy voting. The fees ane calculated on the basis of the assets held under custody and
the number of transactions,

Fees on Fiduciary transactions consist of fees and commissions eamed on fiduciary assets including custody
trangactions, cash management and fiduciary nobtes issuance, The fees ane calculated on the basis of the

assels held under management and the number of transactions.

Fees on Services 1o Managament Company include fees covering functional expenditures and faes for support

services in accordance with the Senvice Level Agreement.

Other fees and commissions include vanous fees such as listing agent fees, guaranies fees, banking services
fees and fund order desk senvices fees.

-28-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decamber 31, 2018

= conlinued -
NOTE 22 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2018 2017
uso uso
Adjustment of Income taxes 2013-2014-2015-2017 2.530.324 0
Adjustment for commission previous years 1.151.445 226.068
Income from the adjustment of general expensas
regarding previous years 414867 H68.181
Sub-Rental Fee received from the Management
Company (Senics level agreement) 70.598 67.500
VAT rafund for previous year (2012-2014) 0 1.441.990
Other operating income 155,028 180.824
4,322 262 2484 583
MNOTE 23 - OTHER OPERATING CHARGES
2018 2017
uso uso
Charges from the adjustment of general
expenses regarding previous years 345919 346,895
Commission on previous years 220.859 137.159
Intarest on pravious years T.836 13,741
Cihers oparating losseas 31.164 10,398
BO5.T7E 507.993

.20
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NOTE 24 - 5TAFF NUMBERS

The average number or persons employed during the financial year by the Bank is as follows:

20138
Number

Senior managemant 29

Midelle management 71

Employees 67
167

NOTE 25 - MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2017
Number

|Eiz%§

The Bank has granted emoluments in respect of the financial year to the members of the managerial bedy of the

Bank by reasan of their responsibilities as follows:

2018

uso

Senlor managernent 5.084.843
Of which varable remunaralion B75.400

Of which fix remunaralion 4.200.434

a7
uso

5832 575

a8r1.739
4,960,836

Dwring the financial yaar, no pension commitments to the members of the Board of Directors and General

Management were made.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Bank did not grant any advancas and cradits to the members of the

Board of Directors and Ganeral Managamant.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
= contnued -

NOTE 26 - OTHER ADMIMISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2018 2017

uso uso

Data charges 1.372.067 1.165.998
Maintenance 1.264.913 1.041,720
Membership foes 2.847 608 1.442 936
Professional feas 3550804 4.376.343
Rent and related expenses 1,141,991 1.109.879
Service conlracts 4.997.353 5.192.885
Senice fee 2.847 497 3412539
System cost 11.679.286 11.204.978
Telacommunication expensas 363,250 A8 358
Travelling, maving, business tnps 203.378 236957
Other expenses G468.406 690 526
3.915.553 30,258,119

The increase of the costs for Memberships is due 1o the intrease of the fees paid 1o Single Resoluion Funds

during the year 2018,
NOTE 27 - TAX
271, Taxon it on ordi witi
2018 2017
uso uso
Corporate Incoma Tax 9,760.432 8.893.072
Municipal Businass Tax 3.408.037 2.938.357
13,169.369 11.831.429

3 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
- continued -
2732 r n r irg i

2018 2017

uso uso

VAT 1.819.754 1.483 833

Othar taxes 56.869 65,001
1876623 1.548 824

NOTE 28 - PARENT UNDERTAKING

As of December 31, 2018, the Bank is a jeintly capitalized subsidiary of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation by 100 %, which are under the holding company Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group (MUFG), which is
incorporated undar the laws of Japan and whosa registerad office is in Tokyo.

The annual accounts of the Bank are incheded in the consolidated accounts of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation, with Registered Financial Institution numbser 33 at Kanto Lecal Finance Bureau Japan and
registered address 4-5, Marunouchi 1-Chome, Chivoda-Ku, Tokyo 100-8212, Japan,

The consolidated accounts of the holding company Mitsublshi UFJ Financal Group (MUFG) may be oblained
from the head office at 7-1, Marunouchi 2-Chome, Chiyoda-Ku, Tokyo 100, Japan.

NOTE 28 - DEPOSIT GUARANTEE SCHEME

The law related to the resclution, receganisation and winding-up measures of credit institutions and certain
investment firms and on deposit guarantee and investor compensation schemes (the “Law”), transposing info
Luxambaurgish law the directive 2014/59/EL establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of eredit
institutions and investment firms and the directive 2014/49/EL related to deposit guarantes and investor
compensation schemes, was passed on December 18, 2015.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
= continued -

The depesit guaraniee scheme (“Fonds de garantie des dépdis Luxembeourg® (FGOL)) and the investor
compensation system (“Systéme dindemnisation des investissours Luxembourg” (SIIL)) cover efigible
deposits of each deposilor up to an amount of EUR 100,000 and investments up fo an amauwnt of EUR 20,000,
The Law also provides that deposits resulling from specific transactions or fulfilling a specific social or other
purpose are covered for an amount above EUR 100,000 for a period of 12 months,

Credit institutions contribute on an annual basis to the Luxembourg banking resolution fund (*Fonds de
resalution Luxembourg™ (FRL)), respactively to tha FGDL.

The funded amount of the FRL shall reach by the end of 2024 at least 1% of coverad deposits, as defined in
article 107(1) of the Law, of all authorzed credit institulions in all paricipating Member States. This amount will
be collected during the years 2015 to 2024,

The target level of funding of the FGDL is set at 0,8% of covered depasits, as defined in article 17H1) af the
Law, of the relevant credit institutions and is o be reached by the end of 2018 through annual contributions,
This amount will be collected during the years 2016 to 2018. When the level of 0,8% is reached, the
Luxembourgish credit institutions are to continue to contribute for 8 additional years in order to constitute an
additicnal safety bulfer of 0.8% of coversd deposits as defined in arficle 180{1) of the Law.

For the year end December 31, 2018, the Bank's annual contribution amounted to EUR 1.686.439

(USD 1.988.640).

-33-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
- continued -

NOTE 30 - AUDIT FEES

During the financial year, the Bank has been charged by the Audit firm and its entire network with the following

fens (excluding VAT
2018 2017
uso uso
Audit faas 320208 265.049
Audit-Related fees 130.547 157633
Tax fees 39220 41.309
Other fees [1] 26.272
507973 490,263

The Non Audit Services provided during the financial year by the entire network of the Audit firm ncluded the
Tollowing servicas:

a.  ISAE 3402 'S0C 1 Type || Report for the period from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018;

b. Preparation of tax retums;
¢, Preparation of VAT refums.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
= gontinued -
Informaticn on crpdit gk on pimary non-traging fnancial instrurments

As at December 31, 2018, the Bank is exposed to the following credit risk on primary non-trading financial

instruments:
2018 2017
Carrying amount Carrying amount
in USD in USD
FINANCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geographic location
Cash, balances with the BCL 3T14.129.527 2.294 618.594
EL member countrias AT14.120.527 2204 618,504
Loans and advances to credit institutions 3.533.550.709 4.079.919.230
EU member countries 180. 725105 470.317. 256
Marth & Central Armarica T22.872.089 1.493.150.265
Agia 2.605,130.138 2.104.162.750
Europe, non-EU member countries 5033138 9.871.366
Austraita and New Zealand 19. 750, 239 2.417.583
Loans and advances to customers 372 880 265472
EL member courirnes 50,865 4473
North & Central America Me2n FO.TFS
Asia 4 221.074
Europe, non-EU member couniries 3.780 150
Shares and other variable yield securities 2.834 14,954
MNaorth & Cantral Amearica 1] 12.008
EUf member couniries 2834 2,976
Total 7.248.055.950 5.374.818.280

=38 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2018
- eontinued -

N4 Information on dedvative non-trading financial instruments

As at Decamber 31, 2018, the Bank is exposed to tha following credit sk on dervatives non-trading financial

instruments:
2018 2018
Motional/payable Risk eguivalent
amount amount
in USD in USD
FINANCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geographic location
Foreign exchange transactions
Forwards
EU rmamber counlrias J160.915.130 T5.043.013
Amarica T13.600.697 2.623.478
Az 25,301 118
Swaps
ELU mamber courries 1.394,522.057 2067411
Total 4.669.063.105 T79.734.020

- 40 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decamber 31, 2018
= continued -

As at December 31, 2017, the Bank is exposed to the following credit risk en dervatives non-trading financial
instruments:

2017 2017
Notional/payable Risk equivalent
armount amount
inusD inuUsD
FINAMCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geographic location
Foreign exchange transactions
Forwards
EL mambar counines 1.151.200.346 8548 868
Armarica 2105636836 16,199,995
Agla b Mrack | 1.22%
Swaps
ELU memibar countrias B12.986. 742 2151255
Tatal 4.070.104.657 26.901.344

=41 =
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1
URJ S.A.
2019 30
010 4,663,736,783 508,627,134
020
030 3,027,015, 686 330,126,331
040 1,636,721,097 178,500,803
050 18,644,871 2,033,410
060 18,644,871 2,033,410
070
080
090
096 0 0
097
098
099
100 0 0
120
130
141 2,823 308
142 2,823 308
143
144
181 2,675,600,619 291,801,004
182
183 2,675,600,619 291,801,004
240
250
260
270 6,210,745 677,344
280 6,210,745 677,344
290
300 2,603,893 283,981
310
320 2,603,893 283,981
330 762 83
340 762 83
350
360 24,427,298 2,664,041
370
380 7,391,227,793 806,087,303
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UFJ

2019

30

S.A.

010

22,491,813

2,452,957

020

22,491,813

2,452,957

030

040

050

060

070

080

090

100

110

6,918,086,851

754,486,552

120

6,912,629,893

753,891,416

130

140

5,456,958

595,136

150

160

170

180

190

200

210

220

230

240

16,886,312

1,841,621

250

16,073,020

1,752,924

260

813,291

88,698

270

280

24,020,784

2,619,707

290

300

6,981,485,760

761,400,837
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UFJ

2019

30

S.A.

010

187,117,966

20,407,085

020

187,117,966

20,407,085

030

040

050

060

070

080

090

095

100

110

120

122

124

320

330

340

350

360

128

130

140

150

155

165

170

180

190

(67,376)

(7.348)

200

210

197,956,757

21,589,164

220

230

197,956,757

21,589,164

240

250

24,734,686

2,697,565
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260
270 0 0
280
290
300 409,742,033 44,686,466
310 7,391,227,793 806,087,303
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(¢
UFJ S.A.

2019 30

010 48,948,146 5,338,285

020 18,132,356 1,977,515

025

030

041

051 24,738,564 2,697,988

070

080 1,532,995 167,188

085 4,544,232 495,594

090 28,855,205 3,146,949

100 244,519 26,667

110

120 20,439,549 2,229,137

130

140

145 8,171,138 891,144

150

160 0 0

170

175

191

192

200 65,063,645 7,095,841

210 32,154,727 3,506,795

220 0 0

231

241

260

270

280 7,431,962 810,530

287

290

300

310

330

340 835,872 91,160

350 1,298,939 141,662

355 59,970,753 6,540,410
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360 24,994,294 2,725,878
370 10,220,443 1,114,642
380 14,773,851 1,611,236
390 1,322,302 144,210
400 676,705 73,801
410
420 645,598 70,409
425 0 0
426
427
430 0 0
440
450
460 289,086 31,528
481
491 289,086 31,528
510
520 0 0
530
540
550
560
570
580
590
600
610 33,365,071 3,638,795
620 8,630,385 941,230
630 24,734,687 2,697,565
640 0 0
650
660
670 24,734,687 2,697,565
680
690 24,734,687 2,697,565
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1 Brown
Brothers Harriman Trust Company Cayman Limited

(

2019 12 200 1,812
(

1985
2020

(2 MUFG S.A. MUFG Lux Management Company S.A.
(

2020 7,375,000 8,721

2020 31
120.30
(
MUFG
S.A.
2011 2011 61

G Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
(

2019 12 10 1,000 1,101 5,060
(
4 Goldman Sachs Asset

Management International

(

2018 12 1,756 9,151
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G
Goldman Sachs Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

(

2018 12 14 15 2,684
(
(6 Yarra Funds Management Limited
(

2018 12 31 1,127,000 8,260
(
@ Goldman Sachs Asset Management

Co., Ltd.

(

2019 12 9,000
(

1996 23
2002 18
29 2007 30
2008 28

(8
(

2019 10 80
(

2020

2020 405
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3) 3.3
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5.5

(a

¢

(c

(]
(e

5.6
5.7
5.8 24,390 30,488
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36,585
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8,536

6.1
(a 2020
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(c

(d
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Independent Auditor®s Report

To Brown Brothers Harriman Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, solely in its capacity as trustee
of MUGC GS Cayman Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund (the" Sub-Trust” ), a sub-trust of
MUGC GS Cayman Fund, as at 30 September 2019, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

What we have audited
The Sub-Trust"s financial statements comprise:

the statements of financial position as at 30 September 2019;

the schedule of investments as at 30 September 2019;

the statements of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statements of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units for the year then ended;

the statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Sub-Trust in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Sub-
Trust™s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Sub-Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.
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Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sub-Trust"s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Sub-
Trust™s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Sub-Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Sub-Trust in
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in
giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Islands

23 December 2019
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UFJ S.A.
L 1150 287 289
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EU No.537/2014 2016 23 CSSF
ISAs

Réviseur d’ Entreprises Agréé

CSSF
IESBA
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Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
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To the Board of Directors of

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
287-289, Route d*Arlon

L-1150 Luxembourg

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

Report on the Audit of the annual accounts

Opinion

We have audited the annual accounts of MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING
(LUXEMBOURG) S.A. (the "Bank'™), which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2018,
and the profit and loss account for the year then ended, and notes to the annual accounts,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying annual accounts present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Bank as at December 31, 2018 and the results of its operations
for the year then ended in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements
relating to the preparation and presentation of the annual accounts.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the EU Regulation No 537/2014, the Law of July 23,
2016 and with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as adopted for Luxembourg by the
Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (CSSF). Our responsibilities under those
Regulation, Law and standards are further described in the "Responsibilities of the Réviseur
d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the annual accounts" section of our report. We are also
independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the annual accounts, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities under those
ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the annual accounts of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of the audit of the annual accounts as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenues recognition - Commission receivable

Why the matter was considered to be one of
most significant in the audit

How the matter was addressed in the audit

We refer to Summary of significant
accounting policies - Note 2.14 - Revenue
Recognition and Note 21 on Commission
Receivable of the annual accounts.

Commission receivable amounted to USD
115,660,720 as of December 31, 2018.
Commission receivable mainly derives from
fund administration, fiduciary and global
custody operations.

Different underlying bases and rates are
applicable depending on the underlying
investments, agreed terms and services
provided.

The process of commission receivable
recognition for the Bank includes
significant manual interventions.

Accordingly, the calculation of commission
receivable are considered to be a key
audit matter due to the significance of
the amounts involved, combined with the
complexity and operational risk associated
with determining the calculation of the

commission receivable.

We obtained an understanding of the
commission receivable recognition process,
and we reviewed key controls in the
process. Due to deficiencies identified
related to the manual processing of
commission receivable, we did not use a
control reliance approach and our
assurance was obtained based on
substantive audit procedures, consisting
of a combination of tests of details and
substantive analytical procedures.

We developed expectations for the
aggregate amounts per type of commission
income and we compared the expectations to
the amounts recorded by the Bank.

For a sample of the different types of
commissions:
we tested commission receivable by
performing independent recalculation of
the commissions. This also included the
reconciliation of the underlying basis
to external evidence;
we agreed the receipt of the commissions
to subsequent payments.
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Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information stated in the management report but does not include the annual
accounts and our report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé thereon.

Our opinion on the annual accounts does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the annual accounts, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the annual accounts or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the annual
accounts

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
annual accounts in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to
the preparation and presentation of the annual accounts, and for such internal control as
the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of annual accounts
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the annual accounts, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Bank®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank®s financial reporting
process.

Responsibilities of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the annual accounts

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual
accounts as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue a report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the EU Regulation No 537/2014, the Law of July 23, 2016 and with ISAs as
adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual accounts.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the EU Regulation No 537/2014, the Law of July 23,
2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual accounts, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank®"s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors®™ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank®s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our report of the Réviseur d*Entreprises Agréé to the
related disclosures in the annual accounts or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual accounts, including
the disclosures, and whether the annual accounts represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the annual accounts of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have been appointed as Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé by the Board of Directors on March 9,
2018 and the duration of our uninterrupted engagement, including previous renewals and
reappointments, is 44 years.

The management report is consistent with the annual accounts and has been prepared in
accordance with legal requirements.

We confirm that the prohibited non-audit services referred to in the EU Regulation No
537/2014, on the audit profession were not provided and that we remain independent of the
Bank in conducting the audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de Révision Agréé

Martin Flaunet, Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
Partner

March 8, 2019
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